1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

AGENDA
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
INDIAN RIVER COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Regular Monthly Meeting
Indian River County Commission Chambers/ Zoom
July 17, 2025
4:00 p.m.

Convene Meeting — William Cooney, Chairman
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance- William Cooney, Chairman

Consent Agenda — Action Required
Approval of the Chairmans Meeting Minutes dated June 18; Regular Monthly Meeting
Minutes dated June 19; and a July disbursement of $1,612,820.08

Reports

A, District Chairman- William Cooney, Chairman
Treasure Coast Community Health Proclamation

B. District Counsel Report — Dana McNally, Esq.

C. Financial Statement Review — Michael Kint, Treasurer
Fimancial Statement dated June, 2025

D. Executive Director Report- Frank Isele, Executive Director
District Staff Updates

E. Funded Agencies Semi Annual Report
1. Treasure Coast Community Health/Mental Health Court/'We Care
Foundation- Vicki Soule, CEO

Unfinished Business

New Business- Action Required

1. Approval of Tentative FY 25-26 Budget- Michael Kint, Treasurer
it. Additional Funding Request Sunshine PT- Ginny Blossom, Executive Director
Other Business

Public Comment

Adjournment



Attorney’s Overview: Indian River County Hospital District

The indian River County Hospital District is an independent special taxing district, located in Indian
River County, Florida, created and incorporated by chapter 61-2275, Special Acts of the 1961
Legisfature, Laws of Florida, as amended.

The governing B{:uard of the District is comprised of seven (7} publicly elected Trustees, all of
whom have been duly elected by the residents of the District in accordance with the provisions
of Section 3 of the Special Act of the Florida Legisiature creating the Indian River County Hospital
District.

To be eligible to sit on the Board of Trustees, all applicants running for election and sitting Trustees
must camply with the Code of Ethics for all publicly elected officials found within Part Hi, Chapter
112 of the Florida Statutes.

At regular and special meetings of the Board, business shail be transacted In such order as the
Board may from time to time determine.

Voting upon all matters coming befgre the Board shall be by voice vote, unless a vate by roll call
shall be demanded by a member of the Board, in which tase the Sacretary shall call the roll and
the manner of voting of each member present shall be noted in the minutes.

Four {4) physically prasent Trustees constitute a guorum, and an affirmative vote of at
feast three {3) Trustees shall be necessary to the transaction of any business of the District,

All Board meetings shall ba conducted in a manner conslatent with the District’s Bylaws as
Amended and Restated, and in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Qrder {21st Century Edition}
and the applicable provisions of Florida law. In the event of conflict betwean the Bylaws and
Robert’s Rules of Order, the District’s Bylaws as Amended and Restated shalt govern.

Meetings shal! ba canducted under the direction of the Chairperson. Courtesy shall be extended
by all participants to all other participants, Comments by ali participants shatt be limited to issues
under discussion and shall not include gersonat attacks or innuendo.

Business conducted at Board meetings, shall bre limited to agenda items,

Counsel for the District shall serve as the District’s parliamentarian. The Chairperson shalf consult
the parliamentarian whenever necessary.

in proaviding an opportunity for public participation at its public meetings, the Indian River County
Hospital District has adopted the following reasanable rules and policies which will ensure the
orderly conduct of a public meeting and which will require orderly behavior on the past of those
persaons attending and making public comment:



{a) The public shall be given the opportunity to comment on a matter that comes
before the District Board prior to the Board taking a vote on a given matter
that does not constitute simply a ministerfal act. When an individual wishes
to comment on a matter to be voted on by the Board that is not purely
ministerial in nature, public comment will be called for by a Board member and
an Individual wishing to make a public comment must approach the podium
and identify himself or herself by name and address, at such time as public
comment is cailed for before a vote is taken.

(b) Each individual requesting the ability to make a public comment must limit his
or her comment to no greater than five (5) minutes to address the Board.

{c) If the Individual making public comment represents a group and is addressing the
Board on behalf of that group, the individual must identify himself or herself by name
and address, and also identify the group that he or she represents. Only one (1)
representative from any group present may make public cormment on any given item
for Board discussion and vote, so that only one member of a given group Is
commenting on a given agenda item

The Indian River County Hospital District Board of Trustees acknowledges that comments

made &t public meetings can have an impactful effect on public opinion. As such, members of
the public making comments, whether outright or in response to public comment, shall base
comments on a factual basis and not merely on personal opinions,

The following guidelines from Robert’s Rules of Order for Public Participation in Board Meetings
shall be observed:

(1)  Speakers are requested to use the centrally located microphone and lectern, when
availahle.

{2) Prior to addressing the Board, all speakers should state their name, address, and
organizational affiliation, if any.

(3) Questions anc comments should be addressed to the entire Board, not to individual
Trustees.

(4) When a specific topic is under consideration, questions and commaents should be
confined to the matter under discussion, and not extend to any other matter.

{5) A limit of five (5) minutes shall be allotted to each speaker on any given item;
provided, however, that the Chairperson may limit or extend the time period for
speakers on @ particular item. The Board may override the Chairperson, or vote to
limit or extend the time period, by majority vote of the Trustees present and voting,



{6)

(10)

A speaker who does not need the entire five () minutes may not yield any unused
portion of the time to another speaker.

On controversial issues, speakers for and against a given topic may be recognized
alternately by the Chairperson.

Board members may question a speaker for the purposes of clarification or
information.

it is expected that speakers will observe the commonly accepted rules of courtesy,
decorum, dignity and good taste. Personal attacks will be ruled of out of order, as
will the use of intemperate, abusive, and defamatory language.

Written statements will be received by the Board in addition to, or in lieu of, oral
presentations,

Public comment may be invited at any time by the Chairperson or by majority vote of the Board.
Public comment shall be solicited on major motions and before the conciusion of a regular

meeting.

Thank you for your attention,



SUMMARY MINUTES

CHAIRMAN’S MEETING ,

Indian River County Hospital District Conference Room/ Zoom

June 18, 2025 '

10:00 AM

TRUSTEES: Chuck Mackett William Cooney
Michael Kint Paul Westcott (zoom)
Allen Jones Kerry Bartlett
Karen Deigl

STAFYF; Dawn Carboni Jennifer Frederick
Kate Voss Frank Isele
Jennifer Peshke, Esq. Kaytlin Dickens

ZOOM: Barb Bodnar Kim Jeansonne
Autumn Schneider Megan McFall
Carrie Lester Anne Posey
Lisa Zahner Kellie Hensley
Dana McNally Raquel Rivas

ATTENDEES: Bill Stewart Todd Howder
Marie Andress Colette Heid
Lauretta Farrel Robyn Orzel
Mary Lintermann Vicki Soule
Wayne Creelman Kelly Williams
Cecelia Stalnaker Ann Marie McCrystal

Convene Meeting & Chairman’s Comments

Dr. Cooney convened the meeting of the [IRCHD Board of Trustees at 10:00 AM by
welcoming those participating via Zoom and in person. Dr. Cooney asked the Trustees if there
was any conflict of interests relative to today’s agenda items, and there were none. Next, he
provided an overview of his attendance at the last CCIRH Board of Directors meeting. He
explained that at the meeting data was provided and reviewed related to patient safety, patient
care, staffing, service lines and volumes, labor force, and fundraising. There was Trustee
discussion relating to items in Dr. Cooney’s report and they thanked him for the information.

VNA Permitting Matter

Ms. Peshke stated that she was contacted by VNA’s legal counsel to discuss a permitting
matter related to the retention ponds located on District property near the VNA’s Hospice House
parcel. She explained the VNA has requested that the District prepare a letter to the St. John’s
Water Management District, allowing the VNA to utilize the existing retention ponds to avoid



Chairman’s Meeting Minutes
June 18, 2025
Page2of 4

constructing an additional pond. Present for today’s discussion was Todd Howder, the engineer
for the project, who spoke to the request. He explained that the current retention ponds are
sufficient for any future development the District or CCIRH may wish to move forward with, He
also spoke about the environmental factors of the ponds and currently there are no new
regulations which could affect this approval process. He further explained that proposed
development would add 6.88 acres of impervious area, totaling approximately 8.5 acres, which
would increase the impervious area percentage to about 46%, leaving 24% available for future
use. Mr. Westcott addressed that board and expressed his desire for a better understanding of
VNA's actual usage to assess future development impacts. He also expressed his concern about
the long-term commitment given and its impact on buildable space. Mr. Stewart, the VNA’s
legal counsel, addressed the board and spoke to the research and due diligence they have
conducted on this matter. Additionally, he stressed the importance of moving forward with this
approval before any potential regulatory changes by the St. JTohns Water Management District g0
into cffect. After further discussion, Ms. Deigl made a motion to move forward with the request
to provide an approval letter to the VNA on the condition that the VNA engineer provides
correspondence to the District outlining the impervious areas of the parcel and confirming the
availability of future development allowance. The motion was seconded by Mr. Jones. After
additional Trustee discussion Ms. Bartlett called the question on the motion, which Dr. Cooney
acknowledged. Ms. Deigl restated her original motion and there was no further discussion. The
motion carried 6-1 with Mr. Westcott in opposition.

Conflict of Interest Checklist

Ms. Peshke stated that in addition to the updated Conflict of Interest policy, which was
approved in April, she has created an accompanying conflict of interest checklist for the
Trustees. She explained that the checklist is designed as an additional resource, with guidelines
and best practices for dealing with conflicts of interest. It is also still expected that a Trustee will
announce any potential conflicts at the beginning of a meeting or during discussions and leave
the room when applicable. Trustees are also required to complete form 8B, which will be
available to them at each meeting,

Women’s Recovery Residence Discussion

Mr. Isele stated that over the past few weeks, he has spoken with various community
members to explore how to best use the District owned property at 620 and 650 10th Street. The
initial idea was to establish a women’s recovery residence, but discussions revealed a bigger
opportunity to create a comprehensive recovery-focused care model to meet a significant need
the substance use and mental health continuum of care. He referenced the 2024 Community
Health Needs Assessment which showed that behavioral health, especially substance use
disorders, are a major health priority for Indian River County, Concerns include rising youth
substance use, limited treatment access, and provider shortages. Additionally, both the Florida
State Health ITmprovement Plan and the Indian River County Community Health Improvement
Plan support the need for expanded recovery services. He recommends the board consider
broader options to address these needs while ensuring the project's sustainability. To move
forward, he is recommending using a Letter of Intent process with interested operators to clarify



Chairman’s Meeting Minutes
June 18, 2025
Page 3 of 4

expectations and evaluate the feasibility of proposals. All proposals should have a self-sustaining
business model, and some uses may require property rezoning. He assured the Trustees that he
will continue gathering community input and present specific recommendations to the Board in
the next coming months.

e-C Impact Evaluation Check-In Discussion

Mr. Isele provided an update highlighting the progress made in the funding strategy and
alignment work for the new fiscal year budge cycle, emphasizing the mission to improve the
health of Indian River County residents and the vision to create an integrated healthcare network.
He explained that this year marked a significant shift for the District as it fully transitioned to a
fee-for-service funding model, changing impact, accountability, and public fund management.
The staff took special care in assessing funding requests, and the main focus was on how each
program could help achieve their goals and measure that impact, centered around three strategic
goals: expanding access to primary care and mental health services, improving access for the
uninsured and underinsured, and promoting high-impact preventive health initiatives.
Additionally, a new degree of alignment and impact framework was introduced to categorize
programs based on their alignment with direct care delivery and strategic priorities. First-Degree
programs are essential front-line services with the highest priority. Second-Degree programs help
with access and coordination. Third-Degree programs focus on prevention, while Fourth-Degree
programs are more peripheral. Additionally, the transition to a fee-for-service model enhances
transparency and allows for real-time analysis of data, enabling better decision-making and
resource allocation. He further expressed gratitude to community partners for their adaptability
during this transition. Looking forward, there is acknowledgment that more work lies ahead, but
there is confidence in the stronger foundation built through strategy, accountability, and
collaborative efforts to improve health outcomes in the community.

There was Trustee discussion surrounding the next steps for discussion on evaluating the
requests and overall fiscal year budget. Mr, Isele stated that staff has received the e-C Impact
evaluation data and is compiling the same to provide a comprehensive report for the Trustees
review. The expectation is that by July 10", the Trustees will begin their discussions at a special
call meeting, which will continue at the July 16™ Chairman’s meeting. On July 17% the Trustees
must vote to approve a tentative budget and then may have further discussion in August, before
approval of a final budget at the end of September.

Other Business

Mr. Westcott addressed the board and stated that he prepared a memo for the Trustees
consideration outlining his interpretation of the District Special Act with regard to funding, He
highlighted a passage from the Special Act which spoke to funding health and medical services
which are defined as items or services provided by or under the supervision of a physician or
other person trained or licensed to render health care certain necessary services. He believes that
the newly developed degrees of alignment and impact framework tracks closcly with the
language in the Special Act and will allow for more strategic funding. He encouraged the
Trustees to review the document and offered an opportunity for further discussion at tomorrow’s



Chairman’s Meeting Minutes
June 18, 2025
Page 4 of 4

board meeting. The Trustees thanked Mr. Westcott for the memo and agreed that additional
conversation should be had. It was further clarified that through this funding cycle, staff
recommendations are only to be used as a guideline should the Trustees wish. Trustees will have
the final say in approving funding and they look forward to those discussions in the coming
weeks. '

Public Comment & Adjourn

There was no additional public comment, and the meeting was adjourned at 11:40 AM.



SUMMARY MINUTES
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
INDIAN RIVER COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
County Commissioner Chambers/ Zoom

June 19, 2025
TRUSTEES: Karen Deigl Michael Kint
Allen Jones Chuck Mackett, M.D.
William Cooney, M.D. Kerry Bartlett
ABSENT: Paul Westcott
STAFF: Shanen Cox Jennifer Peshke, Esq.
Kaytlin Dickens Jennifer Frederick
Frank Isele Dawn Carboni
ATTENDEES: Wayne Creelman Marie Andress
Laretta Farrell Colette Heid
ZOOM: Carrie Lester Cecelia Stalnaker
Ginny Blossom Kellie Hensle
Dana McNally Nancee Long

Convene Meeting, Pledge, Consent Agenda & Chairman’s Report

Dr. Cooney convened the regular monthly meeting of the Indian River County Hospital
District at 4:00 PM. Mr. Isele provided the invocation, and Dr. Cooney led the group in the
pledge of allegiance. Dr. Cooney asked for a motion to approve the consent agenda and a June
disbursement of $1,415,750.04. However, before the approval of the minutes he clarified his
comments within the Chairman’s meecting minutes and stated that while he would prefer board
communication to CCIRH be done through Mr., Isele as executive director, he acknowledges that
it is the prerogative of a Trustee to contact CCIRH staff as necessary. Mr. Kint also pointed out a
typo within the Chairman’s minutes as well. With those corrections acknowledged, Mr. Kint
made a motion to approve the minutes which was seconded by Ms. Deigl. The motion carried
unanimously. Dr. Cooney acknowledged the District staff for their work on the fiscal year 25-26
budget funding cycle and Mr. Isele introduced the staff members present and also thanked them
for their work and dedication. Next Dr. Cooney asked if any Trustees had conflicts of interest
and there were none.

District Counsel Report- Jennifer Peshke, Esq.
Ms. Peshke brought attention to the conflict of interest form 8B, which will be available

at each meeting and must be completed by the Trustee should a conflict arise to ensure
transparency. The meeting packets will also include the attorney’s overview about public



Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes
June 19, 2025
Page 2 of 5

meeting practices and procedures for public reference. This resource outlines how public
comments are handled, and she encourages the public to review them before attending meetings.
Ms. Peshke stated that she continues to review annual deadlines and deliverables related to the
lease with CCIRH and will report any questions or issues. She has assisted staff with updating
internal policies to ensure compliance with current laws, and they are preparing a draft RFP and
procurement policy for board approval. There may also be work on a letter of intent process with
regard to the District owned property on 10™ street. She is also maintaining a list of items that
may require future changes to the District Bylaws. Additionally, she has reviewed the funding
requests within the e-C Impact portal to better understand how information is presented to
Trustees during the FY 25-26 budget process. Finally, she is involved with matters surrounding
VCOM's acquisition of the Human Service Building and its potential lease changes, with actions
expected in the coming month,

Financial Statement Review

Mr. Kint provided the financial review and stated that after eight months of the fiscal
year, the situation remains strong. At the end of May, the District collected $20,785,005 in ad
valorem taxes, which is 98.3% of the budgeted amount. The anticipated outstanding collections
for the year are $365,657. Next, he reviewed the investment snapshot highlighting the U. S.
Treasury holdings of $8,092,985, with T-bills providing an average interest rate of 4.29%.
Section 2 of the report shows the preferred deposit pool holding $6,074,485 and also earning
4.29% in interest. Section 3 details the local operating account at Seacoast Bank, which has
$650,101 in cash holdings. Qverall, the district's total investments and cash are $14,817,571,
with 90% invested for growth. Lastly, he reviewed the year-to-date expenses which are at
63.79% of the budget, with total program expenses at $12,072,821 and administrative expenses
at $835,747, both under budget compared to last year’s figures. Dr. Mackett inquired about the
expenses for We Care and Mr. Kint explained that the program has been absolved by TCCH and
they are working on reconciling expense. A meeting has been arranged with Ms. Frederick and
TCCH to discuss the same. Additionally, Mr. Kint pointed out that there have been some
discrepancies with his year-to-date figures for administrative expenses and the District staff has
set up a meeting to review those discrepancies for correction.

Executive Director Report & Staff Updates

Mr. Isele provided his report and highlighted some areas the District is currently working
on to enhance partnerships, diversify funding, and promote legislative changes. Recently he has
engaged the services of Jordan Flick to prepare a grant research report, focusing on federal grant
opportunities for independent special districts. The aim is to identify federal funding that can
benefit the county without competing with local partners. The report is expected by August,
detailing state and federal grant opportunities to support health care and infrastructure.
Additionally, there are legislative efforts being made at the Federal level with Special District
Fairness and Accessibility Act (HR 2766), which secks to define special districts officially. If
passed, it would help independent hospital districts access federal financial assistance, removing
barriers that hinder funding from agencies like HHS, FEMA, and USDA. He also prepared and
sent support letters to the Florida House Select Comtnittee on Property Taxes, and meetings have



Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes
June 19, 2025
Page3 of 5

taken place with Congressman Mike Haridopolos regarding federal funding cuts and their impact
on the community, Specific examples of the funding threats have been compiled and shared with
his office, and he expressed support for the role of independent healthcare districts.

Additionally, he discussed mechanisms for drawing federal dollars through the low-
income pool and county share of Medicaid. In FY 24, the District contributed $550,000 to the
low-income pool and $594,000 towards Medicaid share at CCIRH, helping to secure over $1.5
million in federal funding. He further explained that while the county share of Medicaid is
mandatory, low-income pool funding is optional, but valuable for maximizing federal support.
There are ongoing efforts to explore partnerships with other Medicaid-enrolled providers to
expand these funding opportunities. There was Trustee discussion surrounding the District's
participation in the LIP and Federal grant opportunities.

Next, District staff provided updates to the Trustees. Ms. Carboni began her recently
completed audit reports for Dynamic Life, Thrive, and Sunshine Physical Therapy. She is in
process of completing the final audit report for the 2022-2023 fiscal year for TCCH, which
should be ready in 4 to 6 weeks, Each agency discussed must submit a corrective action plan by
a set due date after receiving recommendations from the audit reports. She and Ms. Cox are
ensuring these plans and any necessary policy changes are submitted on time. Ms. Cox has also
assisted in reviewing, proofreading completed audits, working on compliance matters, revising
audit schedules and forms for the 2023-2024 fiscal year, They have also developed a
comprehensive purchasing and procurement policy and a fraud and false claims policy, which
will go to the finance committee for review next month. Additionally, they are updating our
internal audit policy and creating a cybersecurity policy.

Ms. Frederick then spoke to the FY 25-26 funding cycle and e-C Impact evaluation
process. Following last year's changes, the focus has been on aligning funding requests more
closely with the District's strategic goals set by Trustees and improving guidelines to ensure
better compliance and accountability concerning taxpayer funds. The deadline for funding
applications was March 28th, and 59 program funding requests from 21 partners were received
and reviewed. She, Mr. Isele and Ms. Carboni spent time assessing these applications, often
requesting more details to verify costs and budgets. A new alignment and impact framework was
introduced to categorize programs based on their relevance to care delivery. Following their
evaluations, further discussions with Trustees were conducted to address concerns. Lastly, she
stated that a detailed report on funding recommendations will be completed by next Friday for
further review and discussion.

Ms. Dickens provided the Trustees with an update on the District’s dashboard. She
explained that most of the data doesn't change significantly but the last three pages show
monthly updates on visits broken down by service type and agency. Currently, there are around
eight or nine agencies offering fee-for-service. Next year, this number will increase to over 20,
which will likely affect data visualization. So far this fiscal year, there’s been an 8.74% increase
in visits, and a projection suggests an 11.8% growth by the end of the fiscal year, compared to
last year's 8.8%. This rise may correlate with a decline in Medicaid enrollment, as individuals
move to financial assistance programs. She also provided a walkthrough of a new dashboard she



Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes
June 19, 2025
Page 4 of 5

created with the annual health survey results, which has interactive charts and demographic data.
The dashboard includes overall satisfaction rates with healthcare, affordability, availability, and
preferences regarding doctors and dentists. The second page focuses on access to care and
reveals that 18.8% of Indian River County residents had to visit the ER due to issues getting
appointments. Additionally, all data can be filtered by categories, allowing specific demographic
insights into responses, ensuring that stakeholders can analyze the information effectively, There
was Trustee discussion surrounding the data within the dashboard and they were appreciative of
Ms. Dickens efforts. There was also discussion surrounding the idea of raising the District’s
Federal Poverty Guidelines to 250%.

Funded Agency Semi Annual Reports

Dr. Cooney referenced the written only funding agency semi-annual reports within the
meeting packet and asked if there were any Trustee questions. Mr. Jones refenced the VNA
reports, specifically addressing that the VNA hospice has exceeded its annual budget by 137% in
just six months due to increased demand. He would like to obtain additional information from
VNA of these metrics to understand the reasons behind the surge in hospice services. Mr. Jones
also question patient volumes at Whole Family Health Center and referenced their different
categories involved in patient care, like mobile medical offices and various assistants. He noted
that the medical services are fee-for-service, making up only 40% of the budget over six months,
despite a significant increase in patients. He would also like additional clarification on this
matter from the agency. Mr. Isele stated that staff met with representatives from the VNA to
discuss the hospice matter after noticing the large increase, which was due to a change in VNA’s
billing and marketing of the program. It was questioned whether the VNA would need to come
back before the Trustees to request additional funding for the current fiscal year. Ms. Frederick
stated that she has spoken with Pat Knipper and they are closely monitoring their total budget to
see if’ additional funds will be required. It was also clarified that an agency would need to have
approval from the board to receive additional funds over their total approved fiscal year budget.
However, staff may approve the reallocation of funds within an agency’s budget, to support one
service line which is tracking higher than another. Additionally, Marie Andress was present at
the meeting and spoke to Mr, Jones carlier question. She noted that they were under budget for
Medicaid fee-for-service this year, unlike last year when they were over budget and requested an
additional $275,000 from the District. This year, they may have exceeded the Medicaid budget
again as there is higher no-show rate among patients, particularly undocumented individuals, and
they are trying to find strategies to address this challenge.

Unfished Business

Dr. Cooney made mention of the memo Mr. Westcott prepared and circulated to the
Trustees at yesterday’s Chairman’s meecting. There was Trustee discussion and the majority
agreed with the sentiment of the memo with regard to funding and the Special Act. There was
Trustee discussion and Mr. Kint requested Ms. Peshke provide the Trustees with her
interpretation of the Special Act with regard to the scope of funding and definition of medical
and healthcare services. Ms. Peshke stated she would work on providing the Trustee additional
research and the Trustees agreed that continued discussions on this matter were appropriate



Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes
June 19, 2025
Page 5of 5

Public Comment/Adjourn

There was no further discussion or public comment. The meeting was adjourned at 5:15
PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Karen Deigl, Secretary



RECOGNIZING TREASURE COAST COMMUNITY HEALTH FOR PROVIDING QUALITY,
ACCESSIBLE AND AFFORDABLE HEALTHCARE TO RESIDENTS OF INDIAN RIVER COUNTY
ON THE OCCASION OF NATIONAL HEALTH CENTER WEEK 2025

Whereas: As the country’s largest primary care network, Community Health Centers like Treasure Coast Community
Health are the healthcare home for over 32.5 million Americans in over 16,000 communities across the country;

Whereas: Community Health Centers like Treasure Coast are a critical component of the nation’s health system,
serving rural, suburban, island, frontier, and urban populations often providing the only accessible and dependable
source of primary care in their communities;

Whereas: The Community Health Center model continues to prove an effective means of overcoming barriers to
healthcare access, including geography, income, and insurance status — improving health outcomes and reducing
healthcare system costs;

Whereas: Treasure Coast Community Health has provided high-quality, affordable, comprehensive primary and
preventive healthcare in our county’s medically underserved communities, delivering value to, and having a
significant impact on Indian River County’s healthcare system for more than 30 years;

Whereas: Treasure Coast Community Health is the healthcare home for one in five County residents, and cares for
nearly 10,000 children in Indian River County;

Whereas: Treasure Coast Community Health has been a valued partner to the Indian River Hospital District for nearly
two decades, providing quality, accessible care to the indigent and uninsured members of the Indian River
community;

Whereas: When the local health department lost state funding in 2019 to provide primary care at the Gifford Health
Center, Treasure Coast Community Health was selected to take over these services; this past year, this site served
more than 10,500 patients;

Whereas: Treasure Coast Community Health is responding to the healthcare crisis in Indian River County by
continually expanding access to primary healthcare, keeping Indian River County residents healthy and out of
expensive health care settings like hospital emergency departments; and

Whereas: National Health Center Week offers the opportunity to celebrate Treasure Coast Community Health and
America’s nearly 1,500 Community Health Center organizations with over 16,000 service delivery sites, including
more than 4,100 school-based sites.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE INDIAN RIVER COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES AS FOLLOWS:

The Indian River County Hospital District Board of Trustees proclaims August 3-9, 2025 as National Health Center
Week, and extends its gratitude to Treasure Coast Community Health for providing quality, accessible and affordable
healthcare our most vulnerable citizens.

Dated this 17" day of July, 2025 By:

William Cooney, Chairman



To:

Board of Trustees, Indian River County Hospital District

From: Jennifer D. Peshke, Esq.

Date: July 17,2025

Re:

IL.

IIl.

IV.

VI,

Indian River County Hospital District Monthly Counsel Report

Our monthly meeting packets and all monthly, chairman’s and special meeting packets will now
contain a copy of Form 8B which is a statutory memorandum of voting conflict we have
discussed several times now as a board.

We have discussed including this with each meeting packet for ease of use and so if a conflict
does arise in a meeting where a Trustee needs to accuse him or herself in accordance with the
IRCHD Conflict of Interest Policy, you will always have the form on hand and available to fill
out. Please note the form is incorporated in our IRCHD Conflict of Interest Policy and should
be completed and provided to the recording secretary for the board by a Trustee each time it is
filled out. The District office will maintain it with the meeting minutes and with their monthly
meeting records.

The Attorney’s Overview that is included with each monthly meeting packet. This overview,
while lengthy, contains a very good summary of our practices and procedures in conducting
District public meetings and also sets out the parameters for public comment. I would urge
those in the public who wish to make public comment to review this item in our meeting packet
so0 you are apprised of our practices for calling for and listening to public comment.

As we do each month, we continue to review the annual deadlines and deliverables due to the
District under the Lease with Indian River-Cleveland Clinic and have responded with questions
as they arise.

This past month, we have continued to work with District staff to review some of our internal
policies to ensure they are up to date and compliant with current law. As we incorporate these
policies internally, we are also keeping a running list of items that need to track back to a future
bylaws amendment so your documents will be consistent and we will begin to work up this draft
for a future review and discussion.

We have been working to keep updated on VCOM acquiring the space at the HSB following their
accreditation matters we have discussed and we have outlined some changes the parties need to
review and consider making to the lease between the parties to better facilitate the objectives of
both parties.

We have been working to finalize the letter that will go to St. John’s Water Management at the
request of the VINA so they can access the existing retention ponds on the land the District owns
adjacent to the parcel the VNA purchased from the District. We will see this matter to a
conclusion and report back once it is completed.



To: Board of Trustees, Indian River County Hospital District

From: Frank Isele, Executive Director
Date: July 17, 2025
Re: FINANCIAL UPDATE JUNE 30, 2025

As of June 30, 2025, the District has received 100.7% of its budgeted tax revenue, totaling
$21,307,780 of the $21,245,137 budgeted for the fiscal year. After accounting for
$1,294,475in commissions and uncollectable taxes, the net realized revenue stands at
$21,150,662. Similar to last year, the District received some unexpected collections from
previously outstanding taxes.

Program expenses came in $78,819 below budget for the month. Year-to-date, program
expenses remain $610,356 under budget,

Administrative expenses were $21,319 under budget for the month, and $40,978 under
budget year-to-date.

The District prioritizes prudent investment of funds. Current investments are managed
through the Florida FIT Preferred Deposit Pool (PDP) and a ladder portfolio of U.S. Treasury
bills. As of June 30, 2025, total investments and cash holdings amount to $14,185,108
broken down as follows: 1) $8,106,172in U.S. Treasury securities, 2) $4,893,683 in the
Florida Fixed Income Trust Preferred Deposit Pool account, and 3) $1,185,253in cash.

The Indian River County Hospital District Board of Trustees will convene on Thursday, July
17,2025 at 4:00 PM at the Indian River County Chambers. Members of the public are
welcome to attend in person or via electronic media. Instructions for virtual participation
can be found at www.|[RCHD.com.



4:45 PM

07/09125
Accruzl Basis

Indian River County Hospital District

Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2025

ASSETS

Current Assets
Checking/Savings
US Bank Investment Account

01-0003 - Seacoast Bank #5711(Operating)

01-0004 - Seacoast Bank #2291 (Deposit)
01-0010 - FL Fixed Income Investments
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
11000 + Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
Other Acounts Recelvable
01-1123 - Accounts Receivable-Other
Other Acounts Recelvable - Other

Total Other Acounts Roceivahle

01-1100 - Accrued Interest Pald
01-1121 - Deposits
01-8152 - Prepald Ingsurance

Total Other Current Assots
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
01-4000 - Land
01-4010 * Land Improvements
01-4011 * Acc Depraciation-Land Improve
01-4018 - Leagehold Improvemants
01-4016 * Acc. Dapr, - Leasehold Improv,
01-4100 * Human Services Building FA
01-4101 - HSVB - Bidg Imprv,
01-4102 - Acc Depeciation-HS Buldg & Impr
01-4110 + Gifford Health Center Bullding
14111 - Acc Dapraciation-GHC Bldg
01-4113 - GHC Building Improvements
01-4200 - 620-650 10th Street Property
01-4205 - 10th Street Acquisition Costs
01-4213 - 10th St Leasehold Improvemaents
01-4300 - Property, Piant & Equip - GHC
01-4301 - Acc Depraciation-Equip GHC
01-4320 - Prop, Plant & Equip-IRCHD
01-4322 + Acc DepreciationIRCHD Equip
01-4500 -+ Right-To-Use Assat {ig¢ases)
01-4501 - Acc, Amortization - RTU Asset

Total Fixed Asseots

Other Assets
01-1176 - Prepald Expenses
- 01.1180 - Other Assets

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Jun 30, 25

§,104,710.3%
735,357.19
99,995,13

4,893,683.18

13,833,745.81

5,992.03

5,902.03

-31.88
31.88

0.00

42,680.14
7,000,00
35,583.44

e S ——

85,273.58

13,825,011 .42

241,160.00
434,083.07
~318,222 64
25,000.00
«16,666.68
1,870,348.22
275,248.03
-1,952,832.97
1,843,487.068
-1,308,677.11
230,583.00
3,915,728.73
16,274.00
138,888.17
247,047.02
«243,459.74
40,672.07
-18,278.79
169,425,00
~59,348.26

5,430,259.18

4,500.00
2748877

31,988.77

19,387,259.37

Page 1



4:45 PM Indian River County Hospital District

07/08/25 Balance Sheet
Accruai Basls As of June 30, 2025

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Llabilitles
Current Liabllitles
Accounts Payable
01-2020 - Accts Pay-Checks to he Wrikton

Total Accounts Payahle

Credit Cards
First National of Omaha 9951

Total Credit Cards

Other Cutrrent Liabilities
01-2152 : Accruad Employea Costs, WH & L
01-2151 « Payroft & WH-Emp Leave Pay Acc
01-2152 « United Healthcare Payable

Total 01-2153 - Accrued Employea Costs, WH & L

01-2200 - Obligations under Leases
01-2780 + Accrued Expensas

Total Cther Current Liahilitlea
Total Current Liabllities
Tota{ Liabllities

Equity
01-2900 - Fund Bajance-lnv in Fixod Asset
01-25910 - Fund Balance-Unrestricted
01-2925 + Fund Balance - BOT Reserve
99-8990 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jun 30, 25

1,595,042.10

1,595,042.10

-166.84

-186.84

35,438.48
69.00

35,508.49

113,030.88
63,000.00

211,538.37

1,806,414.63

1,806,414.63

1.240,033.81
~7,151,602.57
8.550,000.00
€,955,180.81
6,987,132.69

17,580,844.74

19,387,259.37

Page 2



Indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss YTD Including Non-Budgeted Items

Accrual Basis Juhe 2025

Jun 25 Qct'24 - Jun 25

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Interest & Dividend Income

01-5210 - Interest Incomes 73,686.18 213,184.83
01-5220 « Dividend income 18,198.20 270,756.38
Total Interest & Dividend Incomea 02,884.38 483,941,219
Investment income
Change in Market Yalue -35,785.27 859.50
01-5230 + Gain or Loss on Sale of Inv. 1,443.20 19,918.49
Tatal Investment Income -34, 342.07 20,477.99
Property Appraiser Commision
01-6121 - Property Appraiser Commissions -46,492 50 ~185,970.00
Total Property Appraiser Commision -46,492.50 -185,070.00
Tax Assessor Commissions
01-8122 : Tax Assessor Commission -10,668.80 -421,368.80
Total Tax Assessor Commissions -10,668.90 -421,369.80
Tax Commission Revenue
01-5110 « Tax Commisslon Revenue 533,409.17 22,408,091.92
Total Tax Commlssion Revenue 533,409.17 22,408,091.92
01.8124 + Uncollectible 34,99 ~792,200.04
Total Income 534,825.07 21,512,962.28
Cost of Goods Sold
All Program Expenses
01-7000 - Camp Haven
Case Mgmt & Psych Counseling 2,383.66 25,272.98
Drug Test Kits 1,528.48 16,876.32
Total 01-7000 » Camp Haven 3,892.14 42 148 30
01-7001 - Clavetand Clinic
Integration - Mental Hith in Ed 34,559.00 311,031,00
MH/SA Intensive Outpatient Prg 31,071,147 278,640.53
01-8805 - Partner's Programs 266,830.92 2,401,478.28
Total 01-7004 + Cleveland Clinic 33z2.461.09 2,992 149,81
01-7002 - T, C. Community Health Clinic
Behavioral Health 37,932.93 377.654.84
Dental Care Program 69,420.00 584,747.11
LIP 0.00 444,563.44
Madical Services 148,822.93 1,516,808.12
Mental Health Court 36,807.74 400,149.08
Mobile Medical Care 0.00 480,00
Total 01-7002 - T. €. Community Health Clinic 293,183,860 3,320,402.59
01-7003 - Wheole Famiiy Health Center
Behaviora! Health 25,620.00 176,200.00
Lab Services 8,397.62 89,160.69
LIP 0.00 160,904.97
Medical Services 32,640.00 308,130.00
Medicatioh Assistance 21,660.12 198,629,52
Moblle Mad Qffice Prog 22,350.00 138,500,00
Total 01-7003 - Whole Family Health Center 110,666.74 1,072,525.18

Page 1



Indian River County Hospital District

Profit & Loss YTD Including Non-Budgeted ltems

Accrual Basls June 2025
Jun 25 Qct 24 - Jun 25

01.7004 - VNA Health Services

Home Health - VNA 17,843.78 114,301.49

fobile Health Clinic 38,373.00 367,747.00

Music Therapy 7.213.91 64,925.19

01-9909 - Hospice Houses 4,895.10 276,584.25
Total 01-7004 - VNA Heaith Services 68,325,80 823,557.93
01-7007 - Heaithy Start Coalition of IRC

Coord. Intake & Refarral Matern 2,500.00 22,500.00

PEACE 4,166.86 37,499.94

01-8803 : Nurse Home Visitation Program 20,833.00 187,497.00

01-8804 + Nurse Family Partnership Prog. 5,833.33 52,409.97

1-9805 * FIMR 1,667.00 15,003.00

1-8607 * Community Doula 6,250.00 56,250.00
Total 01-7007 - Healthy Siart Goalition of IRC 41,249.99 371,249.M
01-7009 « Mantal Health Assoclation

Mental Health Our House Notwork 3,333.33 29,999.97

Mental Health Pharmaceuticals 670,37 8,160.46

Parent & Child Center 17,871.59 140,607.20

Schoo! Violence Preventioniint. 10,190.00 106,860.00

Walk in Centor 41,725.00 383,990,00
Total 01-7009 - Mental Health Association 73,780.29 867,517.63
01-7010 - New Horizons for IRC

InPt Crisis Bed Days 0.00 7,800.00

Med Myt and Peych Evals 5,155.00 41,750,00

WH Injection Clinic 175.00 1,725.00

Mobile Response Leader 8,333,33 74,999.97

Psychosoclal Rehabilitation 0.00 1,897.50

01-8583 « Outpatient Therapy 950.00 6,765.00

1-8892 + Case Management 4,187.25 45,165,00
Total 01-7010 - New Horizons for IRG 18,840,58 180,202.47
01-7011 - Mental Health Collaborative

Collaborative 21,664.66 194,982,110
Total 01-7011 - Mental Health Collaborative 21,664,66 194,982.10
01-7012 - 8RA

EARS 6,075.00 112,095.00

Emergency Meals on Wheels 7.091.16 83,820.44

Weals on Wheels Waitiist 64,023,33 756,208.97

Public Guardian Program 12,500.00 112,500.00
Total 017012 - SRA 109,680.49 1,045,525.41
01-7013 + Tykes & Teens

General Mental Health OP 24.600.44 313,719.46

Mental Health Gonsultant 24,112.29 228,058.14
Total 01-7043 - Tykes & Teens 48,712.73 541,777.60
0%-T015 - Thrive IRC, ING

Prevention Works Program 47,500.00 142,500.00

Racovery Works Program 90,000.00 270,000.00
Total 09-7015 + Thrive IRC, ING 137,500.00 412,500.00

Page 2



Indian River County Hospital District

Profit & Loss YTD Including Non-Budgeted Items

Accrual Basis June 2025
Jun 25 Oct 24 - Jun 25
01-7015  Hops for Families Center
{ntake Manager 958.91 8,630.19
Medication Technician 1,200.00 10,800.00
Patient Navigator 2,157.68 19,418.22
PT Driver 1,211.92 10,907.28
Supplies 172.92 1,556.28
Total 01-7016 - Hope for Familles Center 6,701.33 51,311.97
01-7017 - Childcare Resources 40,132.34 223,775.95
01-7018 « IR County Medicaid Paid by Dist 48,266,000 434,394,00
01-7020 - Dynamic Life Recovery
Behavioral Health Couseling 2,200.00 20,000,00
Rogor Ball Memor. Scholarship 11,000.00 76,350.00
Totaf 01.7020 + Dynamic Life Recovery 13,200.00 98,350.00
01-7029 - Community Support
Community Support - Other 17,108.48 168,337.68
Total 01-7021 - Community Support 17,108.46 169,337.66
01.7024 - Samaritan Center/ Mental Health 4,86¢,22 48,571.43
017025 - Buncoast Mental Health Center
Family Supp-Walinass W/O Walls 0.00 47,218.75
Total 01.7025 - Suncoast Mantal Health Genter 0.00 4721875
01-7026 - Women's Care Center IRC
Bridging tha Gap Women's Heaith 13,321.00 67,989.00
Total 01-7028 - Women's Care Center IRC 13,321.00 67,989.00
017030 + Sunshine PT - Financial Support 57,867.93 446,895.28
01-7031 + TG Homeless Svs Council 15,078.88 149,672.44
01-7032 » The Learning Alliance 12,194.00 110,289.61
01-7033 - We Care Program
Foundatlon Admin Assist 0.00 2,175.00
Opthalmology Services 3,204.83 35,916.07
PT Admin. Assistant 5,328.69 16,965.65
Total 01-7033 - We Carg Program §,533.52 55,056.72
Total All Program Expenses 1,496,242.79 13,565,202.74
Total COGS 1,498,242.79 13,565,202.74
Gross Profit -961,417.72 7,947,759.54
Expenso
Administrative Expenses
10th Street Property
01-9331 - Professional Sgrvices 1,650.00 15,156.29
01-8332 - Other 1,920.48 18,241.16
Total 10th Strest Property 3,570.48 33,397.44
Human Services Building
01-9110 - Utilities - Electricty 218.39 7,124.79
01-9111 - Property Taxes 0.00 30,80
018210 + Other Expense-Maint Outsido Svc 2,579.03 8,866.43
Human Services Buiiding ~ Other 0.00 0.00
Total Human Services Building 2,797.42 15,860.32




Indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss YTD Inciuding Non-Budgeted Items

Accrual Basis June 2025
Jun 28 Oct '24 - Jun 28
Insurance
01-6931 - Insurance-Professionat Liabilit 0.00 120,381.00
01-6935 - Workers Comp [nsurance 0.00 2,000,00
01-8310 - lnsurances 0.00 1,165.00
019350 - Insurance-Officers & Directors 0.00 7.507.33
Total insurance 0.00 131,063.33
Office Expeanses & Svc Contracts
01-1513 - Postage and Detivery 28.20 2,015.53
01-6216 - Supplles - Food 342,42 5,085.74
01-8217 - Office Service Contracts 3,174.13 23,972.46
01-6240  Video & Recording 900.00 1,350.00
01-6291 - Office - Website 20.00 316.10
01-6292 « Office - Google 126.00 798.18
01-5283 - Supplies - Office & Admin 566.91 9,388.70
01-86294 - Bank Charges 83.33 785,92
01-6296 - Office - Malntenance 0.00 6.87
01-5288 - invest Mgt/ Adv Fees -Deap Blue 1,250.00 11,280.00
016919 - Admin - Cell Phono 0.00 426,03
01-6920 - Utilities - Electrc 313.92 2,326,78
019220 - Purchased Sves - Sves Contracts 4,907.26 12,873.54
Tota! Office Expenses & Sve Confracts 11,713.17 70,604.85
Salaries and Beneflts ’
011306 - Payioll Gompany Foo 88.70 930.73
01-1307 - Payroil Tax Expense 3,300.38 27,328.70
011308 « Salaries 43,376.21 353,851.80
01-8311 - Employee Health Insurance 5,961.94 44,395.10
01-5900 - Employee Beneflts - Retiremont 0.00 18,052.00
Total Salaries and Benefits 52,735.23 444, 567.33
041311 - Professional Services -Finance 2,175.00 17,400.00
01-1540 - Dups, Subscriptions & Education 134.99 7,701.76
01-6210 - Professional Serv-Consulting 0.00 43,671.00
01-6220 - Professlonal Services Legal Fea 9,954.75 94,091,086
01-6230 + Professional Service - Auditing 0.00 57,650.00
01-6515 - Interest Exponse 0.00 1.75
01-93015 - Publications and Qthar 0.00 986,40
01-8040 - Other Expense - Travel 0.00 1,127.56
01-9230 - Purchased Sves - Rent 4,001.55 36,014.05
01-9411 - GHC - Other Maintensnce 2.900.00 6,400.00
Total Administrative Expenses 89,982,598 960,626.85
Total Exponse 89,982.59 960,626.85
Net Ordinary Income ~1,051,400.31 6,087,132.69
Het Income ~1,051,400,31 8,887,132.6¢

Page 4




:47 PM Indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis June 2025
Jun 25 Budget $§ Cver Budget
Crdinary Income/Expense
income
Interest & Dividend income
(1-5210 - Interest incomes 73,686.18 125.00 73,561.18
01-5220 - Dividend income 19,1¢8.20 10,625.00 8,573.20
Tota! interest & Dividend income 92,884.38 10,750.00 82,134.38
investment income
Change in Market Value -35,78527 0.00 -35,785.27
Total investment income ~-34,342.07 0.00 -34,342.07
Property Appraiser Commision
01-6121 - Property Appraiser Commissions -46,492.50 -15,473.75 -31,018.75
Total Property Appraiser Commision -46,492 50 -15473.75 -31,018.75
Tax Assessor Commissions
01-5122 - Tax Assessor Commission -10,668.90 36,286.33 -46,955.23
Totat Tax Assessor Commissions -10,668.80 36,286.33 -46,955.23
Tax Commission Revenue
01-5110 - Tax Commission Revenue 533,406.17 1,870,428.08 -1,337,018.91
Totaf Tax Commission Revenus 533,400.17 1,870,428.08 -1,337,018.91
01-6124 - Uncollectible 34.99 -56,112.83 56,147.82
Totat income 534,.825.07 1,845,877.83 -1,311,052.76
Cost of Goods Soid
Ali Program Expenses
01-7000 - Camp Havan
Case Mgmt & Psych Counseling 2,363.66 4,333.33 -1,968.67
Brug Test Kits 1,528.48 1,689.25 -180.77
Totat 01-7000 - Camp Haven 3,892.14 6,022.58 -2,130.44
01-70D1 - Cleveland Clinic
integration - Mental Hith in Ed 34,559.00 34,559.00 0.00
MHISA intensive Quipatient Pry 31,0717 3107117 0.00
01-9805 - Partner's Programs 266,330.92 266,830.92 .00
Totai 04-70061 - Cleveland CHnic 332,461.09 332,461.00 0.0C

Page1



4:47 PM Indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accruat Basis Junga 2025
Jun 25 Budget % Over Budget
01-7002 - T, C. Community Health Ciinic
Behavioral Health 37,832.93 32,083.33 5,849.50
Dentel Care Program 69,420.00 66,067.67 3,352.33
LiP 0.00 4(,833.33 -40,833.33
Medical Services 148,922.93 1585,735.67 -10,812.74
Mental Health Court 36,807.74 5925375 -22,345.01
Mobile Dental Care 0.00 22,907.67 22 907 67
Mobiie Medical Care 0.00 32,002.33 -32,092.33
Totai 01-70462 - T. C. Community Health Clinic 293,183.60 412,973.75 -119,780.15
01-7003 - Whole Famiiy Health Center
Behaviorai Health 25,620.00 17,435.00 8,185.00
Lab Services 8,397.62 6,666.67 1,730.95
ur 0.00 13,480.50 -13,480.50
Medlcal Services 32,640.00 43,860.00 -11,220.00
Medication Assistance 21,655.12 0.00 21,659.12
MobHe Med Office Prog 22,350.00 10,583.33 11.766.67
Pharmacy RX Assist 0.00 27,916.67 -27.916.67
Total 01-7603 - Whole Family Heaith Center 110,666.74 119,852.17 -8,285.43
01-7004 - YMA Health Services
Home Healfth - VNA 17.843.79 20,539.75 -2,695.95
Mohile Heatth Clinic 38,373.00 33,6504 67 4,768.33
Music Therapy 7.213.91 7,213.92 -0.01
01-9909 - Hospice Houses 4.895.10 15,828.25 -10,933.15
Totat 01-7004 - VNA Health Services 58.325.811 77,186,59 -8,860.79
01-7007 - Healthy Start Coalition of IRC
Coord. intaike & Referral Matemn 2.500.00 2,500.00 0.00
PEACE 4,166.66 4,166.66 0.00
{1-9803 - Nurse Home Visitation Program 20,833.00 20,833.00 0.00
#1-2804 - Nurse Family Partnership Proyg. 5,833.33 5,833.33 0.00
1-S806 - FIMR 1,667.00 1,667.00 0.00
1-5807 - Community Doula 6,250.00 6,250.00 0.0
Total 01-7007 - Healthy Start Csalifion ¢f IRC 41,249.98 41,249.99 0.00
01-7009 - Mentai Heaith Association
Mental Health Our House Network 3,333.33 333333 0.00
Menta?! Health Pharmaceuticals 670.37 0.00 670.37
Parent & Child Center 17,871.59 18,358.75 -487.16
Schoot Violence Preventionfint. 10,180.00 14,583.33 -4,393.33
Watk in Center 44,725.00 41,604.17 120.83
Total 01-T009 - Mantst Health Association 73,780.2¢ 77,879.58 -4,089.29

Page 2



4:47 PM Indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis June 2025
Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget
01-7010 - New Horizons for IRC
inPt Crisis Bed Days 0.00 1.270.83 -1,270.83
Med Mgt and Psych Evais 5,155.00 2,229.17 292583
MH injection Clinic 175.00 47.92 127.08
Mobile Response Leader 8.333.33 §,333.33 0.00
Psychosocial Rehabilitation 0.00 1,070.00 -1,070.00
01-9953 - Cutpatient Therapy $50.00 73117 258.83
1-9982 - Case Management 4,187.25 2,984.25 1,203.00
Totai (1-7010 » New Horizons for iRC 18,840.58 16,666.57 2,173.91
01-7011 - Mantal Health Collaborative
Collaborative 21,664,66 21,666.67 -2.01
Total 01-7011 - Mental Heatth Collaborative 21,664.66 21,666.67 -2.01
01-7012 - SRA
EARS 6,075.00 16,958.33 ~4.883.33
Emergency Maals on Wheels 7.091.16 7,091.16 0.00
Meals on Wheels Waitlist 84,023.33 84,023.33 0.00
Public Guardlan Program 12,500.00 12,500.00 0.00
01-7014 - Upsiide Program 0.00 2,916.67 -2,916.67
Total 81.7012 - SRA 109,685.49 117.489.49 -7.800.00
01-7013 - Tykes & Teens
General Mental Health OP 24,600.44 45,934.42 ~21,333.98
Mentai Health Consultant 24,112.29 28.189.42 ~4,077.13
Totai 01-7013 - Tykes & Tegns 48,712.73 74,123.84 -25411.11
01-7015 - Thrive IRC, INC
Prevention ¥Works Pragram 47,500,00 15,833.33 31,666.67
Recovery Works Program 90,000.00 30,000.00 £0,0060.060
Total 01-7015 - Thrive IRC, INC 137,500.00 45,833,33 91,666.67
01-7016 - Hope for Families Center
intake Manager 958.91 958.92 -0.01
Medication Technician 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00
Patient Navigator 2,157.58 2.157.58 0.00
PT Driver 1,211.92 1,211.92 0.00
Supplies 17292 172.92 0.00
Total 01-7916 - Hope for Famities Center 5,701.33 5,701.34 -0.01
01-7017 - Childcare Resources 40,132,34 26,400,00 13,732.34
01-7018 - IR County Medicaid Pald by Dist 48,256.00 49,516.67 -1,250.67

Page 3



4:47 PM

Indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis June 2025
Jun 28 Budgat $ Over Budget
01-7020 - Dynamic Lifa Recovery
Behavioral Health Couseling 2,200.00 4.,000.00 ~1,800.00
Roger Ball Memor. Scholarship 11.000.00 6,250.00 4.750.00
Total 01-7020 - Dynamic Life Recovery 13,200.00 $0,250.00 2.950.G60
01-7021 - Community Support
Community Support - Other 17,108.46 0.00 17,108.46
01-7021 - Community Support - Other 0.00 12,500.00 -12,500.00
Tota} 01-7021 - Community Support 17,108.46 12,500.00 4,608.46
01-7024 - Samaritan Center! Mental Health 4,862.22 6,503.52 ~1,641.70
01-7025 - Suncocast Mental Health Canter
Family Supp-Welinass WI/O Wails 0.00 13,491.67 -13,491.67
Total 01-7025 - Sunceast Mental Health Center 0.00 13,451.67 -13,491.67
01-7026 - Women's Care Center IRC
Bridging the Gap Women's Health 13,321.00 21,666.67 -8,345.67
Total 01-7026 - Women's Care Center iRC 13,321.00 21,666.67 -8,34567
0%-7030 - Sunshine PT - Financial Support 57.867.93 38,333.33 19,534.60
01-703% - TC Homeless Svs Council 15,078.88 27,842.75 -12,763.87
01-7022 - The Learning Alliance 12,194.00 12,916.67 -722.67
01-7033 - We Care Program
Foundation Admin Assist 0.00 2,166.67 -2 166.67
Cpthaimology Services 3,204.83 1,666.67 1,538.16
PT Admin. Assistant 5328.69 2,600.00 272869
Total 01-7033 - We Care Program §,533.52 5,433.34 2,100.18
Total All Program Expenses 1,496,242.78 1,575,062.11 -78,819.32
Total COGS 1,496,242.79 1,575,062.14 «78,819.32
Gross Profit 961 417.72 270,815.72 -1,232,233.44
Expanse
Administrative Expenses
Human Services Building
01-8110 - Utilities - Electricty 218.39 0.00 218,39
91-5210 - Other Expense-Maint Ouiside Svc 2,579.03 4,166.67 -1,587.64
Total Human Services Bullding 2,797.42 4,166.67 -1,369.25

Page 4



Indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis June 2625
Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget
insurance
01-6231 - Insurance-Professional Liabilit 0.60 7.500.00 -7.500.00
01-§935 - Workers Comp insurance 0.00 166.67 -166.67
01-9310 - Insurances 0.00 . 8.33 433
01-9350 - Insurance-Officers & Directors 0.00 1,491.67 -1,491.67
Tota! Insurance 0.00 0,166 67 -9,166.67
Office Expenses & Svec Contracts
41-1513 - Postage and Delivery 29.20 174.28 -145.08
01-6216 - Supplies - Food 34242 492 58 -150.16
01-5217 - Office Service Contracts 3,174.13 2,289.46 584.67
01-6240 - Video & Recording 900.00 22083 679.17
01-6290 - Supplies - Other 0.00 679.34 -579.34
01-6291 - Office - Website 20.00 8241 £2.41
01-6292 - Dffice - Google 126.00 38.17 §7.83
01-6293 - Supplies - Office & Admin 566.91 1,525.84 -958.93
01-6244 - Bank Charges 83.33 8333 0.00
01-6255 - Office - Maintenance 0.0C 180.75 -180.75
01-6296 - invest Mgt/ Adv Fees -Deep Blue 1,250.00 1,250.00 0.00
41-6919 + Admin - Cell Phone 0.00 110.86 -110.86
1-6820 - Utilities - Electric 313.82 29456 19.36
1-9220 - Purchased Sves - Svcs Contracts 4,507.26 577.58 4,329.68
Total Cffice Expenses & Svec Contracts 14,713.17 7.895.99 3,713.18
Other Expenses-Licenses & Taxes 0.00 250.00 -250.00
Salaries and Benefits
§1-1306 - Payroli Company Fee 88.70 8577 -1.07
01-1307 - Payroli Tax Expense 3,308.38 3,802.35 -492 97
01-1308 - Safaries 43,375.1 40,470.00 2,905.21
01-6311 - Employee Health Insurance 5,881.94 4,009.93 1,952.01
01-6900 - Employes Benefits - Retirement 0.00 1.340.22 -1,340.22
Total Salarics and Benefits 52,735.23 4971827 3,016.85
G1-1311 - Professional Services -Finance 2,175.00 3,916.67 -1,741.67
01-1540 - Dues, Subscriptions & Education 134.99 1,666.67 -1,531.68
01-6210 - Professional Serv-Consuiting 0.00 7.500.00 -7,500.00
{1-6220 - Professional Services Legal Fee 8,954.75 14,583.33 -4,628.58
01-6230 - Professional Service - Auditing 0.co 4,583.33 -4,583.33
{1-815 - Pubiications and Other 0.00 250.00 -250.00
01-8040 - Other Expense - Travel 0.00 833.33 -833.33
01-5230 - Purchased Sves - Rent 4,001.55 4.166.67 -165.12
01-9411 « GHC - Other Maintenance 2,900.00 2,500.00 400.00
Total Administrative Expensas 89,982.59 111,301.60

21,319.01

Page 5



4:47 PM indian River County Hospital District
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis June 2025
Jun 25 Budget % Over Budget
Other Non Gash Expenses
Depreciation - GHC*
01-6605 - Depreciation-GHC Bldg and impr. 0.00 7,083.33 -7,083.33
01-6639 - Depreciation-GHG Equipment 0.00 1,250.00 -1.250.00
Totat Depreciation - GHC® 0.00 8,333.33 -8,333.33
Depreciation - HSB
01-8631 - Depreciation - Land Improv. 0.00 2,0683.33 -2083.33
Total Depreciation - HSB 0.00 2,083,33 -2,083.33
Total Other Non Cash Expenses 0.00 10,416.66 -10.416.66
Totai Expense 89,962.59 121,718.26 -31,735.67
Net Ordinary income -1,051,400.31 149,097 .46 -1,200,497.77
Net Income -4,051,400.31 149 097 .46 «1,200,497.77

Page 6



4:53 PM Indian River County Hospital District
YTD Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 20624 through June 2025
Oct *24 - Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget
Ordinary income/Expense
fncome
Interest & Dividend Income
015210 - interest iIncomes 213,184.82 1,125.00 212,055.83
01-5220 - Dividend income 270,756.38 95,625.00 175,131.28
Total {nterest & Dividend Income 483,941.21 56,750.00 387,191.21
investment income
Change in Market Value 559.50 0.00 558,50
01-5230 - Gain or Loss on Sale of inv, 19,918.49 0.00 19,918.49
Tota! investment income 20,477.99 0.00 20,477.99
Property Appraiser Commision
01-6121 - Property Appraiser Commissions -185,870.00 -139.263.75 -46, 70825
Total Property Appraiser Commision -185,970.00 -135,263.75 -46,708.25
Tax Assessor Commissions
01-6122 - Tax Assessor Commission -421,369.80 326,577.401 -747.945.81
Total Tax Assessor Commissions -421,369.80 326,5¢7.1 -747,946.81
Tax Commission Revenue
01-5110 - Tax Commission Revenue 22,408,051.92 16,833,852.76 5,574,239.16
Totat Tax Commission Revenue 22,408,081.92 16,833,852.76 5,574,239 16
01-6124 - Uncollectible -792,209.04 -505,015.51 -287,193.53
Totat incomie 21,512,962.28 16,612,900.51 4,500,061.77
Cost of Goods Soid
Al Program Expenses
#7000 - Camp Haven
Case Mgmt & Psych Counseling 2527298 358,000.01 -13,727.03
Drug Test Kits 16,876.32 15,203.25 1,673.07
Total 04-7000 - Camp Haven 42,149.30 54,203.26 -12,053.96
04-7001 - Cleveland Clinic
Integration - Mentat Hith in Ed 311,031.00 311,021.00 0.00
MH/SA intensive Outpatient Prg 279,640.53 279,640.49 0.04
41-9505 - Partner's Programs 2,401,478.28 2,401,478.26 0.02
Total 4-7001 - Cleveland Clinic 2,592,149.81 2,992,149.75 0.06

Page 1



4:53 PM Indian River County Hospital District
YTD Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis October 2024 through June 2025
Oct"24 - Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget

01-7002 - T. C. Community Heaith Clinic

Behaviorat Health 377.654.84 288,750.01 88.904.83

Dantai Care Program 584.747.11 584,608.99 -9,851.88

LiP 441,563.44 367.500.01 74,063.43

Medical Services 1,615,808.12 1,437,620.99 78,187.13

Mental Health Court 400,149.08 533,283.75 -133,134.67

Mobile Dental Care 0.00 205,168.99 -2(:8,168.99

Mobile Medical Care 480.00 288,831.01 -288,351.01
Totai 01-7002 - T. C. Community Health Clinic 3,320,402.59 3,716,763.75 ~396,361.16
01-7603 - Whoie Family Health Center

Behavioral Health 176,200.00 156,915.00 19,285.00

Lab Services 89,160.69 59,959.599 29,160.70

LiP 160,904.597 12141450 39,490.47

Medical Services 308,130.00 394,740.00 -86.610.00

Medication Assistance 198,629.52 0.00 158,629.52

Mobile Med Office Prog 139,500.00 95,250.01 44 249 99

Pharmacy RX Assist 0.00 251,249.99 -251,245.99
Totat 61-7003 - Whole Family Health Center 1,072,525.18 1,075.569.49 -7,044.31
1-7004 - VNA Health Services

Home Heaith - VNA 114,301.49 184,857.75 -70,556.26

Mobiie Health Clinic 387.747.00 302,441.99 65,305.01

tusic Therapy 64,825.192 64,925.24 -0.05

1-8509 - Hospice Houses 276,584.25 142,454.25 134,130.00
Total 01-7004 - VNA Health Services 823,557.93 6594,679.23 128,878.70
01-7007 - Healthy Start Coalition of IRC

Coord. intake & Referral Matern 22,500.00 22,500.00 0.00

PEACE 37,499.94 3749994 0.00

01-8803 - Nurse Home Visitation Pregram 187,497 .00 187,497.33 -0.33

01-9804 - Nurse Family Partnership Prog. 52,499.97 52,459.97 0.00

1-8806 - FIMR 15,003.00 15,003.00 .00

1-9807 - Community Doula 56,250.00 56,250.00 0.00
Total 01-7007 - Healthy Start Coalition of IRC 371,249.91 371,250.24 -2.33
01-7009 - Mental Health Association

Mental Health Our House Network 29,990.97 30,000.01 0.04

Mental Health Pharmaceuticals 6,160.46 0.00 6,160.46

Parent & Child Center 140,507.20 165,228.75 -24,721.55

Schooi Viclkence Prevention/int. 106,860.00 131,250.01 -24,390,01

Walk in Center 383,990.00 374,437.49 9,552 51
Total 01-7009 - Mental Heaith Association 657,517.63 700,916.28 -33,398.63

Page 2



4:52 PM Indian River County Hospital District
YTD Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accruat Basis October 2024 through June 2025
Oct ‘24 - Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget

01-7010 - New Horizons for IRC

mPt Crisis Bed Days 7,900.00 11,437.51 -3,537.51

Med Mgt and Psych Evals 41,750.00 20,062.49 21,687.51

MH injection Clinic 1,725.00 431.24 1,293.76

Mobile Response Leader 74,998.97 75,060.01 -0.04

Psychosocial Rehabilitation 1,857.50 9,630.00 -7.732.50

0£1-9893 - Quipatient Therapy 6,765.00 6,580.49 184.51

1-9552 - Case Management 45,165.00 26,858.25 18,306.75
Total 01-7010 - New Horizons for IRC 180,202 47 149,599.99 30,202.48
01-7011 - Mental Health Coillaborative

Coilaborative 194,982.10 194,999.99 -17.89
Total 01-7011 - Mental Heaith Coliaborative 194,982.10 184,599.89 -17.88
01-7012 - SRA

EARS 112,995.00 98,625.01 14,362.89

Emertgency Meals on Wheels ©3,5820.44 63,820.52 -0.08

Meals on Wheels Waltlist 756,208.97 756,210.01 -0.04

Pubiic Guardian Program 112,500.00 112,560.00 0.00

01-7014 - Upsiide Pregram 0.00 26,249.99 -26,245.93
Totaf 01-7012 - SRA 1,045,525.41 1,057,405.53 -11,880.12
01-7013 - Tykes & Teens

General Mental Health OP 313,719.46 413,409.74 -99,680.28

Mental Health Consuitant 228,058.14 253,704.74 -25,646.60
Totat 01-7013 - Tykes & Teens 54177760 6567,114.48 -125,336.88
01-7015 - Thrive IRC, INC

Prevention Works Program 142,500.00 142,500.01 0.01

Recovery Works Program 279,000.00 270,600.00 0.00
Total 01-7015 - Thrive IRC, INC 412,500.00 412,500.,01 -0.01
01-7016 - Hope for Famities Center

intake Manager 8,630.19 8,630.24 -0.05

Medication Technician 10,800.00 10,800.00 0.00

Patient Navigator 19,418.22 19,413.26 -0.04

PT Driver 10,807 .28 10,807 24 0.04

Supplies 1,556.28 1,556.24 0.04
Total 01-701€ - Hope for Families Center 51,311.97 51,311.98 0,01
01-7017 - Chiidcare Resotirces 22377585 237,600.00 -13,824.05
01-7018 - IR County Medicaid Paid by Dist 434 38400 44554999 -11,255.88

Page 3



4:53PM Indian River County Hospital District
YTD Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accruai Basis October 2024 through June 2025
Cct*24 - Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget
91-7020 - Dynamic Life Recovery
Behaviaral Health Couseling 20,000.C0 36,000.00 -15,000.00
Roger Bali Memeor. Scholarship 75,350.00 56,250.00 20,160.00
Total G1-7020 - Dynamic Life Recovery 96,350.00 92 250.00 4,100.00
01-7021 + Community Support
Commumity Support - Other 189,337.66 0.00 169,337.66
91-7021 - Community Support - Other 0.609 112,500.00 ~112 500.00
Total ¢1-7021 - Communpity Support 169,337.66 112,500.00 55,837.66
01-7024 - Samaritan Center/ Mental Health 48,571.43 58,535.24 -8,863.81
01-7025 - Suncoast Mental Health Center
Family Supp-Weliness W/O Walls 47,218.75 121,424.89 -74,206.24
Total G1-7025 - Suncoast Menta] Health Center 47.218.75 121,424.99 -74,206.24
01-7026 - Women's Care Center iRC
Bridging the Gap Women's Heatth 67,959.00 194,999.99 -127,010.59
Totat 01-7026 - Women's Care Center iRC 67,989.00 194,599.99 -127,010.99
01-7030 - Sunshine PT - Financial Support 446,63528 345,000.01 101,695.27
01-7031 - TC Homeless Svs Council 149,672.44 250,584.75 -100,912.31
01-703Z - Tire Learning Alliance 110,289.61 116,249.99 -5,960.38
01-7033 - We Care Program
Foundation Admin Assist 2,175.00 19,490.09 -17,324.92
Opthalmology Szrvices 35,916.07 14,999.99 20,916.08
PT Admin. Assistant 16,865.65 23,400.00 -6,434.35
Totat 01-7033 - We Care Program 55,056.72 §7,899.98 -2,843.26
Total All Program Expenses 13,565,202.74 14,175,558.80 -610,356.16
Taotai COGS 13,565,202.74 14,175,558.80 -£510,356.16
Gross Profit 7,947,755.54 2,437 341 61 5.510,417.93
Expanse
Administrative Expenses
Human Services Building
01-8110 - Uiilities - Electricty 712479 0.00 7,124.79
01-9111 - Property Taxes -30.90 0.00 -30.90
01-9210 - Other Expense-Maint Qutside Sve 8,866.43 37,499.99 -28,633.56
Total Human Services Building 15,960.32 37,499.99 -21,530.67

Page 4



4:53 PM

Accrual Basis

indian River County Hospital District

YTD Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
October 2024 through June 2025

Insurance
01-6931 - iInsurance-Professionat Liabilit
01-6935 - Workers Comp Insurance
01-9310 - Insurances
01-9350 - nsurance-Officers & Directors

Total insurance

Office Expenses & Svc Contracts
0141513 - Postage and Delivery
01-5216 - Supplies - Food
1-62147 - Office Service Contracts
01-5240 - Video & Recording
01-6290 - Supplies - Other
21-6291 - Office - Website
01-6292 - Office - Google
01-6293 - Suppties - Office & Admin
01-6294 - Bank Charges
01-6295 - Office - Maintenance
01-6296 - Invest Mgt/ Adv Fees -Deep Blue
01-6919 - Admin - Cefl Phone
01-6920 - Utilities - Electric
01-3220 - Purchased Sves - Sves Contracls

Total Office Expenses & Sve Contracts

Other Expenses-Licenses & Taxes
Salaries and Benefits
01-1306 - Payroli Company Fee
01-1307 + Payreill Tax Expense
01-1308 - Salaries
01-6311 - Empioyee Health insurance
01-6200 - Employee Benefils - Retirement

Total Salaries and Benefits

01-1311 - Professional Services -Finance
41-1540 - Dues, Subscriptions & Education

01-6210 - Professional Serv-Consuiting
1-6220 - Professional Services Legal Fee
01-62340 - Professional Service - Auditing
01-6515 - Interest Expense

01-8018 - Publications and Other

01-9040 - Other Expense - Travel

Oct 24 - Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget

120,381.00 67,500.00 5§2,881.00
2,000.00 1,499.99 500C.01
1,165.00 75.01 1,089.59
7.507.33 13,425.03 -5,917.70

131,063.33 82,500.03 48,553.30
2,01553 1,568.51 447.02
5,085.74 4,433.25 65249
23,972.46 20.605.16 3,367.30
1,350.00 1,887.51 -£37.51
0.00 6,114.04 £,114.04
315,10 1M -426.81
798.18 343.50 454.68
9,398.70 13,732.59 -4.333.89
7685.92 750.01 3691
6.87 1,626,756 -1,616.88
11,250.00 11,250.00 0.co
42603 897.77 -571.74
232673 2,651,02 -324.24
12,873.54 5,19825 767529

70,604.85 72,000.07 -1,395.22

0.00 2,250.00 -2,250.00
§38.73 861.95 .77
27.328.70 34,221.15 -5,892.45
353,851.80 364,230.00 -10,378.20
44,385.10 35,981.56 8,413.54
18,052.00 12,061.97 5,990.03

444 567.33 447,356,864 -2,788.31

17,400.00 35,249.99 -17.849.99

7.701.78 14,995.99 -1.298.23

43,671.00 67,500.00 -23,829.00

94,091.08 131,250.01 -37,158.95

57,650.00 41,250.1 16,399.599

1.75 0.00 1.75

886.40 2,250.00 -1,263.60

1,127.56 7.500.01 -5,372.45

Page 5



4:53 PM

Accrual Basis

indian River County Hospital District
YTD Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

October 2024 through June 2025

01-8230 - Purchased Sves - Rent
01-9411 - GHC - Other Maintenance

Total Administrative Expenses

Other Non Cash Expenses
Depreaciation - GHC*
01-6805 - Depreciation-GHC Bidg and impr.
01-6630¢ - Depreciation-GHC Equipment

Total Depreciatlon - GHC*

Depreciation -~ HSB
01-6631 - Depreciation -~ Land Improv.

Total Depreclation - HSB
Total Other Hon Cash Expenses
Totat Expense
Wet Crdinary income

Met income

Oct"24 -Jun 25 Budget $ Over Budget
36,014.05 37,450.99 -1,485.94
6,400.00 22,500.00 -16,100.00
960,626.85 1,001,606.73 -40,979.88
0.00 63,750.01 -63,750.01
0.00 11,250.00 -11,250.00
0.00 75,000.01 -75,000.01
Q.60 18,749.97 -18,749.97
o.o0 18,749.97 -18,748.97
0.00 93,749.98 -93,749.98
860,626.85 1.095,356.71 -134,729.86
€,987,132.69 1.341,984.80 5,645,147.79
€,987,132.69 1,341,584.5Q 5,645,147.7T9

Page 6



Indian River County Hospital District

4:44 PM

07/09/25 Checks Written

Accrual Basis As of July 9, 2025

Date Num Name Amount
01-0003 + Seacoast Bank #5711(Operating)

06/16/2025 10404 Camp Haven -5,155.33
07/02/2025 10407  Stormiroopers Home Improvement, LLC -3,487.18
07/09/2025 10408 A Caring Center for Women -13,321.00
07/09/2026 10400 Benson's Lock Service, Inc, -505.00
07/09/2025 10410 Camp Haven -3,892.14
07/09/2025 10411  Catholic Charitles of the Diocase of PB -4,862.22
07/09/2026 10412  Childcare Resources of Indian River «40,132.34
07/09/2025 10413  Clemenis Pest Control -150.00
07/05/2025 10414  Cleveland Clinic [ndian River Hospital -332,461.09
07/09/2026 10415 Complete Elactric Inc -1,400,00
07/09/2025 10416  Deep Blue Investment Advisors +«1,250,00
07/09/2025 10417  DiSalvo And Company, P.A, -2,175.00
07/09/2025 10418 Down to Earth Landgeape & Irigation -572.00
07/08/2026 10419  Dynamic Life Recovery +13,200,00
07/09/2025 10420 First National Bank of Omaha -8,472.73
07/09/2025 10421  Gould Femily Froperties VII, LLC -4,121.60
07/06/2025 10422 Hope for Families -5,701.33
07/09/2025 10423  Indian River Board of County Commissio.., -48,286.00
07/09/2025 10424  Indian River Cnty-Bd of Cnty Commissio... -1,350,00
07/09/2025 10425  Indian River County Property Appraiser -46,492,50
07/09/2025 10426 indian River Healthy Start Coalition inc -45,741.11
07/09/2025 10427 JP Ortando, LLC -412.00
07/09/2025 10428 Lamberl Commercial Real Estate Inc, -850,00
07/09/2025 10429 Law Offices of Jennifer D Peshke, P.A -9,954,75
07/09/2025 10430 Mental Health Assoclation «73,790.29
07/09/2025 10431  Mental Health Collaborative of IRC -21,664,66
07/09/2025 10432 New Hoerizons «18,840.58
07/09/2025 10433  Pye-Barker Fire & Safety -1,062.50
07/09/2025 10435 Southeast Secure Shredding -35,00
07/09/2025 10438  Sunshine Physical Tharapy Clinic -57,867.93
07/09/2025 10437 TC Homeless Sarvices Councll, Inc. -15,078.88
07/09/2025 10438 Techlands Studios, Inc. -4,380,00
07/05/2025 10439  The Learning Alliance -12,194.00
07/09/2025 10440  Thrive IRC, Inc. ~147,605.00
07/09/2025 10441  Treasure Coast Communily Health, Inc. -258,275.98
07/09/2025 10442  Treasure Coast Computer Services «2,445,00
07/08/2025 10443  Tykes & Tegns -50,174.95
07/08/2025 10444  United Against Paverty, Inc.- IRC ~1,050.12
07/09/2025 10445  United Way of Indian River County -272.33
07/09/2025 10448  VNA of the Treasure Coast -58,325.80
07/09/2025 10447 We Came Foundation of IR -8,533.62
07/09/2025 10448 Whole Family Health Center -110,666.74
07/09/2026 10449  Treasure Goast Community Health, Inc. ~36,907.74
07/09/2025 10450 We Care Foundation of IR -24 024,37
07/09/2025 10451  Senior Resource Assoclation -108,689.49

Total 01-0003 - Seacoast Bank #5711(Operating)

TOTAL

~1,612,820.08

~1,612,820.08

Pago 1



Indian River County Hospital District Financial Snapshot FY'25
June 30, 2025

& 21,307,780 § 21,150,662 § (167,118) 100.7%
November 29, 2024 Treasury Bill US Bank Pivot Investments 91282CHN4 3 1,964,530
January 239, 2025 Treasury Bill US Bank Pivot Investments 91282CFE6 $ 1,335,712
January 29, 2025 Treasury Bill US Bank Pivot Investments 91282CFK2 5 1,336,542
June 2, 2625 Treasury Bill US Bank Pivot Investments 912797QE0 ] 1,277,975
June 13, 2025 Treasury Bill US Bank Pivot Investments 91282CAZ4 $ 2,047,579
Liquid First Am* US Bank Pivot Investments 31846V203 $ 142,372
Liguid Cash US Bank Fivot Investments - $ 1,462
BALANCE VALUE TO DATE  $ 8,106,172
Liguid lnvestment POP? Flerida Fixed Income Trust 3 4,893,683
BALANCE % 4,893,683
Liquid Cash Seacoast Deposit Account X2291 3 99,985
Liquid Cash Seacoast Operating Account X5711 % 1,085,258
BALANCE § 1,185,253
TotalInvestments (1+2) % 12,999,855
Total Investments and Cash {1+2+3) ] 14,185,108
% Of Available Cash Invested 92%
Notes

! Budgeted Ad Valorem Taxes of $22,445,137, lass commissions and uncollactables of $1,294,475 = $21,150,662 realized
g Maney Market Mutual Fund/First American Government Obligations Fund Class Y

* preferred Depasit Poal

4.348%
A 427%
3.985%
4.249%
4.284%
3.550%

4.280%

July 31, 2025
August 15, 2025
September 15, 2025
Octoher 9, 2625
November 20, 2025



Indian River County Hospital District

Year to Date Expenses -vs- Budget

PROGRAM EXPENSES

Camp Haven
Case Management & Psych Counseling
Drug Test Kits

Total

Cleveland Clinic Indian River Hospital
Integration of Mental Health in ED
MH/SA Intensive Outpatient Program
Partners Program

Total

Mental Health Association
Our House Network - Drop In Center
Parent & Child Center
Mental Health Pharmaceuticals
School Violence Prevention/Intervention
Walk-In Center

Total

Visiting Nurse Association
Home Health
Mobile Health Clinic
Music Therapy
Hospice House/Home Hospice Care

Total

Healthy Start Coalition of IRC
Coord Intake & Referral Maternity Navigator
PEACE
Nurse Home Visitation Program (B&B)
Nurse Family Partnership Program
FIMR
Community Doula

Total

Treasure Coast Community Health, Inc.
Behavioral Heaith
Dental Care
LIP
Medical Services
Mental Health Court
Mobile Dental Care
Mobile Medical Care

Total

2024/2025 June Percent
Budget 2025 Expensed
(9 months =75%)
52,000 25,273 48.60%
20,271 16,876 83.25%
72,271 42,149 58.32%
414,708 311,031 75.00%
372,854 279,641 75.00%
3,201,971 2,401,478 75.00%
3,989,333 2,992,150 75.00%
40,000 30,000 75.00%
220,305 140,507 63.78%
0 6,160
175,000 106,860 61.06%
499,250 383,990 76.91%
934,555 667,518 71.43%
246,477 114,301 46.37%
403,256 367,747 91.19%
86,567 64,925 75.00%
189,939 276,584 145.62%
926,239 823,558 |  $8.91%
30,000 22,500 75.00%
50,000 37,500 75.00%
250,000 187,497 75.00%
70,000 52,500 75.00%
20,000 15,003 75.02%
75,000 56,250 75.00%
495,000 371,250 | 75.00%
385,000 377,655 98.09%
792,812 584,747 73.76%
490,000 441,563 90.11%
1,916,828 1,515,808 79.08%
711,045 400,149 56.28%
274,892 - 0.00%
385,108 480 0.12%
4,955,685 3,320,403 67.00%




We Care Program
Foundation Administrative Assistant
Ophthalmology Services
PT Administrative Assistant

New Horizons for IRC
In Patient Crisis Bed Days
Med management & Psych Evals
MH Injection Clinic Injections
Mobile Response Leader
Psychosocial Rehabilitation Program
Outpatient Therapy
Case Management

Senior Resources Association
EARS
Emergency Meals on Wheels
Meals on Wheels Waitlist
Public Guardian Program
Upslide Program

Tykes & Teens
General Mental Health OP
Mental Health Consultant

Whole Family Health Center
Behavioral Health
LIP
Medical Services
Mobile Med Office
Pharmacy RX Assistance
Lab Services

Thrive - Substance Awareness Center
Prevention Works Program
Recovery Works Program

Hope for Families Center
Intake Manager
Medication Technician
Patient Navigator
Patient Driver
Supplies

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

2024/2025 June Percent
Budget 2025 Expensed
(? months = 75%)

26,000 2,175 8.37%
20,000 35,916 179.58%
31,200 16,966 54.38%
77,200 55,057 | 71.32%
15,250 7,900 51.80%
26,750 41,750 156.07%
575 1,725 300.00%
100,000 75,000 75.00%
12,840 1,898 14.78%
8,774 6,765 77.10%
35,811 45,165 126.12%
200,000 180,202 | 90.10%
131,500 112,995 85.93%
85,094 63,820 75.00%
1,008,280 756,210 75.00%
150,000 112,500 75.00%
35,000 |} - 0.00%
1,409,874 1,045,525 |  74.16%
551,213 313,719 56.91%
338,273 228,058 67.42%
889,486 541,778 60.91%
209,220 176,200 84.22%
161,886 160,905 99.39%
526,320 308,130 58.54%
127,000 139,500 109.84%
335,000 198,630 59.29%
80,000 89,161 111.45%
1,439,426 1,072,525 74.51%
190,000 142,500 75.00%
360,000 270,000 75.00%
550,000 412,500 | 75.00%
11,507 8,630 75.00%
14,400 10,800 75.00%
25,891 19,418 75.00%
14,543 10,907 75.00%
2,075 1,556 75.00%
68,416 51,312 | 75.00%




Dynamic Life Recover
Behavicral Health Counseling
Roger Ball Scholarship

Total

Community Support - Other

Childecare Resources - Early Intervention

County Share of Medicaid Paid by District
Mental Health Collaborative / McCabe Center
Samaritan Center/Mental Health

Suncoast Mental Health Center - Family Wellness
Sunshine Physical Therapy - Financial Support
The Learning Alliance

Treasure Coast Homeless Services Council
Women's Care Center

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
10th Street - Maintenance & Other Expenses
HSB - Maintenance & Other Expenses
GHC - Maintenance & Other Expenses
Salaries/Benefits
Professional Services - Consulting
Professional Services - Finance
Professional Services - Legal
Auditing Services
Office Supplies & Service Contracts
Dues/Subscription/Education
Travel and Expense Reimbursenient
Insurance
Bank Fees
Licenses and Taxes (and Interest Expense)
Publications and Other
Purchased Services - Rent

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

TOTAL PROGRAM & ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES

FY23/24 COMPARABLES

2024/2025 June Percent
Budget 2025 Expensed
(9 months = 75%)
48,000 20,000 41.67%
75,000 76,350 101.80%
123,000 96,350 | 78.33%
150,000 169,338 112.89%
316,800 223,776 70.64%
594,200 434,394 73.11%
260,000 194,982 74.99%
78,047 48,571 62.23%
161,900 47,219 29.17%
460,000 446,695 97.11%
155,000 110,290 71.15%
334,113 149,672 44.80%
260,000 67,989 26.15%
18,900,745 13,565,203 71.77%
- 33,397 -
50,000 15,960 31.92%
30,000 6,400 21.33%
595,000 444,567 74.72%
90,000 43,671 48.52%
47,000 17,400 37.02%
175,000 94,091 53.77%
55,000 57,650 104.82%
95,000 70,605 74.32%
20,000 7,702 38.51%
10,000 1,128 11.28%
110,000 131,053 119.14%
1,000 - 0.00%
3,000 2 0.06%
3,000 986 32.88%
50,000 36,014 72.03%
1,334,000 960,627 72.01%
20,234,745 14,525,830 71.79%
17,468,550 13,009,282 74.47%




To:

From:
Date:

Re:

Board of Trustees, Indian River County Hospital District
Frank Isele, Executive Director

July 17, 2025

BOARD REPORT

MATERNITY SERVICES SUSTAINABILITY DISCUSSION UPDATE FROM 7.16.25
DISCUSSION

FY2025/2026 BUDGET UPDATE FROM 7.16.25 DISCUSSION

LETTERS TO HOUSE SELECT COMMITTEE

In May, letters were sent in support of healthcare advocacy and legislative
collaboration to each of the 37 committee members. So far, we have received one

response from Representative Meg Weinberger

IMPACT STORY

Page 1 of 1



Florida House of Representatives
Representative Meg Weinberger

District 94
District Office: Tallahassee Office:
9200 Belveders Road 1401 The Capitol
Suite 214 402 South Monroe Street
Royal Palm Beach, FL 33411 Tallahassee, FL 32399
(361) 576-0340 {350) 717-5094

July 14, 2025

Indian River County Hospital
1705 19th Place, Suite G3
Vero Beach, FL 32960

Dear Mr. Isele,

Thank you for sending your letter and for sharing your concerns about the ongoing property tax
discussion. 1 appreciate you taking the time to reach out, and I would like to address some of the points
you have raised.

First, it is important to clarify the purpose of the Select Commitiee on Property Taxes. As a select
committee, it does not make decisions regarding whether property taxes should be abolished, or which
programs continue to receive funding if they do. Rather, its role is to conduct research, compile
information, and provide recommendations to the legislature. To fulfill this role, committee members
regularly consult with experts and constituents to pain a well-rounded understanding of the issue. Given
how diverse Florida’s counties are, this outreach is essential to ensure that all perspectives are heard and
considered.

By expressing your concerns directly, vou are taking the appropriate steps. I would also encourage you to
share your findings, worries, and insights with your local Representatives, as they play a key role in
carrying the voices of your district to the table in Tallahassee,

Please do teel free to share a breakdown of your revenue and spending for your program with our
committee, so we may gain an understanding of how your program may be impacted by propoesed future
legislation.

With gratitude,

Rep. Meg Weinberger

"You make a living by what you get,; you malke a life by what you give.” ~ Winston Churchill



Impact Story: A Family Reconnected Through Mental Health and Community Support
July 17, 2025

When families in crisis come to the McCabe Connections Center, they’re often carrying
burdens that no one should bear alone. One recent case was brought to the collaborative
by the Indian River County Sheriff’s Department. This case highlights just how powerful
community collaboration can be in helping families not just survive but heal and thrive.

Alocal couple, both in their 60s, found themselves on the brink of becoming full-time
caregivers to their four young grandchildren. Their daughter, struggling with a long-term
substance use disorder, was unable to provide care, and the grandparents were stepping in
to prevent the children from entering the foster care system. The emotional and legal
complexities of the situation were overwhelming.

Their care coordination team stepped in immediately. First, they helped connect them with
therapy services for each of the children through Tykes and Teens to help them cope with
the transition and evaluate them for any further services they may need.

Next, they referred the grandparents to the Access to Justice program, ensuring they had
access to affordable legal guidance to navigate the adoption process with clarity and
confidence. They also linked them to a private mental health therapist in their insurance
network, recognizing that their well-being was critical to the stability of the household.

Finally, they provided information and referrals to detox and rehabilitation facilities that the
grandparents could share with their daughter, giving her a path to recovery whenever she is
ready to take it.

This story is a testament to what’s possible when systems work together. From law
enforcement and legal aid to behavioral health and recovery services, this family received
holistic support because the right help was available at the right time.

Through the McCabe Connections Center, your leadership helps ensure these safety nets
are not just available, but effective. This is the real impact of mental health access and
community partnership in action,



Indian River County
Hospital Tax District

TCCH Update
October, 2024 - March, 2025

Presented
June 2025



Significant
Accomplishments

Goal #1: Expand Access to Primary Care and Mental Health Services
in Indian River County

Objective 1.0: Increase the availability of full-time primary care
professionals

* Dr. Rashonda Williams and Dr. DeAndra Monroe accredited as TCCH
Consulting Pharmacists to expand care and support providers in the
community

* Working with We Care to recruit additional specialty care providers
* Hosted 16 medical students from VCom and FSU
* Hired 16 full-time primary care professionals

Objective 1.1: Increase the number of full-time mental health
professionals

* Hired 3 full-time mental health professionals



Significant
Accomplishments

Goal #2: Expand Access to Essential Services for the Uninsured and
Underinsured

Objective 2.0: Increase access to healthcare services for
uninsured/underinsured individuals, including those in the ALICE population.

Continuing construction on West Health Center, with projected opening of
August 2025

Broke ground on Oslo Pediatric Center
Hired a pediatric clinical care coordinator

Implemented Young Child Program collaboration between medical and
dental providers for children under 3 years oid to introduce children the
dentist while at a well-child visit, and begin a lifelong habit of good oral
care

TCCH Consulting Pharmacists now able to test, treat, prescribe and fill the
prescriptions for STls to screen for HIV, write and fill prescriptions



Significant
Accomplishments

Goal #2: Expand Access to Essential Services for the Uninsured and
Underinsured, Cont’d

Objective 2.0: Increase access to healthcare services for
uninsured/underinsured individuals, including those in the ALICE population.

* TCCH-funded health liaison at Dodgertown Elementary, where 80.3% of
families are living below the poverty line, assists students and families in
accessing medical, dental and mental health services

* Signed MOU to provide interim administrative and management support
and grow services offered by We Care

* Offering mobile dental services at Indian River County Jail

* Hired a transitions case manager at the IRC Jail to provide incarcerated
persons are released connection to healthcare services, including
transportation and cell phones for improved communication, upon release



Significant
Accomplishments

Goal #3: Develop and Implement High-Impact Preventive Health Initiatives

Objective 3.0: Establish county-wide preventive care initiatives aimed at
disease prevention and early-cancer detection to reduce hospitalization for
preventable conditions such as diabetes, hypertension, obesity and common
cancers

* |ntroduced monthly mobile mammogram services
* Enrolled 80 individuals in Diabetes Education and Management programs

Objective 3.1: Establish county-wide preventive initiatives focused on
substance use prevention and treatment

 Expanded MAT services in Indian River County Jail

* CEO Vicki Soulé serves in a leadership capacity on the IRC Opioid and SUD
Needs Assessment Advisory Group.















Thank you!



Indian River County
Hospital Tax District

October, 2024 — March, 2025

Presented
June 2025



Indian River County Mental
Health Court

In October 2023 Treasure Coast Community Health was awarded funding to
continue the ongoing services provided to the clients enrolled in the Mental
Health Court Diversion Program in Indian River County. During the first six
months of funding agreement the Project Director worked in collaboration
with multiple agencies to gain insight into successes and challenges within
the IRCMHC program as well as begin to develop plans for sustaining and
improving program services. During quarter three and four of the initial
funding year the MHC team identified challenges within the program related
to funding, housing, staffing structure and communication between
agencies and began to develop plans for overcoming each of these
challenges in collaboration with other agencies.



Indian River County Mental
Health Court

The primary goals set by the MHC team for FY 2024/2025 are as follows:

Develop and Execute M.0.U.s with each of the housing providers (M.O.U.
completed and in process of executing with each housing provider)

Unify the core members of the MHC team under the oversight of one agency
(currently in discussions with IRCSO and 19t Judicial Circuit)

Identify and seek sustainable funding sources for MHC program in addition to
IRCHD (currently in discussions with IRCSO, IRCBOCC and other community
partners and philanthropists)



TREASURE COAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Mental Health Court Program

Indian River County Mental Health Court Statistics (10/01/2024-03/31/2025)

¢ Number of Clients enrolled in MHC as of 03/31/2025 - 121
e Number of Clients entered into Mental Health Court - 75
®* Number of Clients graduated Mental Health Court — 11

MONTH Monthly Budget (1/12th | Actual Percentage of Budget
Approved Budget) Expensed Utilized
October 24’ $59,253.76 S 43,954.07 74%
November 24' $59,253.76 S 46,2592.20 78%
December 24' $59,253.76 $45,691.18 77%
January 25’ $59,253.76 $ 47,296.65 80%
February 25' $59,253.76 S 45,906.22 77%
March 25’ $59,253.76 $44,911.49 76%
(6 Month Total) $ 355,522.57 $271,051.81 77%

Total Annual Budget

$711,045.14




Significant
Accomplishments

Goal #1: Expand Access to Primary Care and Mental
Health Services in Indian River County

Objective 1.1: Increase the number of full-time mental
health professionals

* 3 Wrap around case managers dedicated to MHC
Clients through New Horizons of the Treasure Coast

* 1 Therapist dedicated to MHC Clients through Mental
Health Association

* 1 Peer Support Specialist dedicated to MHC Clients
through Mental Health Association



Significant
Accomplishments

Goal #2: Expand Access to Essential Services for the Uninsured and
Underinsured

Objective 2.0: Increase access to healthcare services for
uninsured/underinsured individuals, including those in the ALICE population.

* 2 court managers dedicated to connecting all clients in program with resources

* 3 wrap around services case managers for higher need clients dedicated to
connecting clients to resources

* Collaboration with multiple agencies to ensure access to mental health and
healthcare services for clients within program



TREASURE COAST COMMUNITY HEALTH
Wrap Around Community Case Management

New Horizons of the Treasure Coast Performance Measures and Outcomes

(Data collected based on MHC clients who have been assigned to receive wrap-around services through
NHTC during the time period of October 1% 2024 through March 315t 2025)

Month 1. 2 3. q.
% of client who Average number of days | % of clients receiving % of positive
required inpatient | spentin the community | direct service w/in 5 survey
psychiatric care via | in the last 30 days business days of responses
Baker Act or Court | without arrest admission
Ordered
Oct-24 6% 20 100% 100%
Nov-24 6% 23 100% 100%
Dec-24 3% 30 100% 100%
Jan-25 3% 30 100% 100%
Feb-25 0% 30 100% 100%
Mar-25 0% 23 100% 100%




TREASURE COAST COMMUNITY HEALTH
Wrap Around Community Case Management
| (Continued)

New Horizons of the Treasure Coast Performance Measures and Outcomes

(Data collected based on MHC clients who have been assigned to receive wrap-around services through
NHTC during the time period of October 1% 2024 through March 31 2025)

(1) Based off total number or Mental Health Court Clients receiving wrap around services with NHTC (i.e.
2 out of 32 in October 2024)

(2) Based off new clients each month and each client’s date of enrollment into mental health court. If
client’s date of arrest was within 30 days prior to enroliment the client’s time spent in jail is captured in
this data.

(3) Based off new client’s connecting with New Horizon’s Case Manager within 5 business days of
referral to case management.

(4) Conducted monthly through Case Manager with ALL clients receiving wrap around case managment
services through New Horizons.



TREASURE COAST COMMUNITY HEALTH
( Therapy and Peer Support Services

Mental Health Association Performance Measures and Qutcomes

(Data collected based on MHC clients who have been assigned to receive therapy services through MHA
during the time period of October 1* 2024 through March 315 2025)

e  Objective 1:
o 100% of MHC therapy participants have successfully completed their therapy
treatment.
e Objective 2:
o 100% of MHC therapy participants surveyed “agreed or strongly agreed” that their
therapeutic services are helpful to them.
e Objective 3:
o 100% of MHC therapy participants surveyed “agreed or strongly agreed” that they
feel more hopeful about the future.
e Objective 4:
o 100% of MHC participants assigned to the MHC peer specialist have attended the
MHA Drop-in Center.













Thank you!



Semi-Annual Report to the Indian River Hospital District
October 1, 2024 — March 31, 2025
Submitted June 10, 2025

Overview

The We Care Foundation of indian River County’s mission is to ensure that medically
underserved and uninsured residents of Indian River County have access to free specialty
medical services provided by compassionate healthcare volunteers. We did that in 2024 by
providing nearly 51 million in specialty medical services to the under-resourced population
living in Indian River County, ending the year on a strong note.

As we entered 2025, We Care experienced significant staffing changes. First, our Executive
Director resigned in early February, followed shortly thereafter by our Bookkeeper. At that
time, the Board of Directors, led by Chair Dr. Nancy Baker and Treasurer Erik Melville, asked
Treasure Coast Community Health to provide interim management and administrative support,
naming TCCH CEOQ Vicki Soulé interim Executive Director.

Together, Ms. Soulé and the Board developed a plan for growth and expansion of services,
which led to the decision to convert the part-time Nurse Manager position into a full-time one.
The Nurse Manager at the time chose not to accept that position, and a new Nurse Manager
will begin on July 1, 2025,

Patient Story: A Mother’s Gratitude for Personalized Care

“As a mother, there is no greater comfort than knowing your child is finally receiving the care
they truly deserve. For the past year and a half, my son has been a patient with We Care, and it
has completely transformed our lives. Before that, we had no real understanding of the severity
of his condition, Marfan syndrome. We were in the dark, unsure, and overwhelmed.

My son had undergone surgery at 16 years old, and we believed it addressed the condition. But
as time passed, his symptoms worsened. We now know that the surgery did little to resoive the
underlying issues. He was silently suffering, and we didn’t know how to help him.



it wasn’t until we connected with, We Care and met Dr. Scridon that everything changed. Dr.
Scridon didn’t just treat my son, he listened. He took the time to understand his full medical
history and recognized things that had been missed for years. Through his careful evaluation,
attention to detail, and unwavering patience, Dr. Scridon ordered the right testing and helped
us discover what was truly going on.

Thanks to his guidance, my son is finaily on the path to the treatment he needs. For the first
time, we feel hopeful. As a mother, | will forever be grateful to Dr. Scridon and We Care for
their dedication to delivering truly personalized, compassionate care.”

Patient Advocacy

Despite the staff changes, day-to-day operations remained steady. Overall, We Care received
347 specialty care referrals for 298 patients between October 1, 2024 and Marc 31, 2025. The
majority of these referrals were for Gastroenterology (18.66%), Ophthalmology (15.74%),

Dermatology {13.41%), and Neurology (10.50%). The largest referral source was Treasure Coast
Community Health (94.51%).

The Patient Advocate qualified all referrals, coordinated communications between
patients/families and care providers, and provided assistance to the Nurse Manager in
scheduling clinics. During this time, 179 patients received specialty care; We Care hosted six
cardiology clinics and one dermatology clinic.

Specialty # of patients seen
Urology 1
Rheumatology 5
Radiology 1
Dermatology 11
Podiatry 13
Physical Therapy 8
Orthopedics 11
Ophthalmology 46
Neurology 10
Nephrology 5
Gastroenterology 42
ENT 14
Diagnostic Testing 10
DME 2
Grand Total 179




Area Served

' % IRC referrals by zip code

| Beachside 1%
32963 1%
Fellsmere -14%
32948 14%
Gifford/Wabasso/Indian River Shores 17%
32967 17%
Sebastian . 20%
32958 18% |
| 32976 2% |
- South Vero 27%
32962 20%
. 32968 6%
Vero Beach 14%
32960 14% |
Western Vero 8%
I 32966 : 8%
| Grand Total e - 100%
Age Range % per age
18-29 9.3%
30-39 17.7%
40-49 22.0%
50-59 20.0%
60-69 24.9%
70+ 6.1%
Total 100.0%
Ages range from 20 - 91
Medicare Age
65+ 15.9%
Specialty % per Specialty
Cardio ~ 8.45%
Cardiology . 4.66%
Dermatology . 13.41%
DXTESTING . 0.87%
_Endocrinology 1.17%
ENT 7.58%




- . - : | 1856%

Nephrology o 1.46%
_Neurology — , .. 10.50%
.Ophthalmology . 15.74%
Ortho o o L17%
Physical therapy - 0.58%
Podiatry o 8.45%
Pulmonary . 0.87%_
Radiology - 0.29%
_Rheumatology S o .4.08%
X - . 087%
Urology 1.17%
Grand Total 100.00%
Referral Source % referred

CCIRH 0.58%
ER 0.29%
FEI 0.29%
Forest 0.87%
NVEC 0.58%
Ocean View optical 0.29%
other 0.29%
Ronderos Botero 0.29%
Scridon 0.87%
TCCH 94.51%
WFHC 1.16%
Grand Total 100.00%

Ophthalmology

For the period October 1, 2024 through March 31, 2025, We Care received 102 referrals for
Ophthalmologic care for 75 unduplicated clients. Services were provided to 46 patients during
this time, including Glaucoma Treatment, Cataract Surgery, Avastin Injections and other eye
treatments, for a total cost of $19,514,

Ophthalmology referrals 102
Unduplicated Ophthalmology Clients 75

Ophthalmology Referrals By Zip Code

Zip Code B ,, B L)
...32948 B 9%
232988 . 11%



32960 - 26%
32962 23%

32963 1%

32966 5%
132967 15%
32968 9%

IRC Total 100%

' Ophthalmology Client Ages

Age %

18-29 1.4%

30-39 5.4%

40-49 13.5%

50-59 17.6%

60-69 39.2%

70+ 23.0%

Total 100.0%

Age Range: 24-91 years old

Medicare Age

65+ 41.9%

Time Between Referral Received & Appt. Date

Days
1-7
8-14
15-30
31-60
61-90
90-180
180-365
366-400
Renewal
Total

%

PCP

%

345

2.0%

CAE

1.0%

FEI

1.0%

NVEC

15.8%

Ocean View optical

1.0%

Opthamology

1.0%

6%
2%
13%
27%
10%
6%
10%
2%
25%
100%



Ottuso 1.0%
Revere med group 1.0%
Self 1.0%
TCCH 71.3%
WFHC 4.0%
Grand Total 100.0%

Ophthalmology - Reasons for Referrals
Abnormal Eye Exam
Age Related Cataracts )
Amyl0|d Ptergylum of Both Eyes
'CAE, cataracts
Cataract _
Cataract of Bot_h _E__yes _
Cataracts o
‘Chronrc Conjunctwlt!s
Cupping of Optic Disc
Decentered Intraocular Lens Implant
Dlabetes
_Dlabetes Hyperglycemla
Diabetic Retinopathy
Dlsorder Associated w1th Dlabetes Type 2
Essential Hypertension
_Eye Irritation
Glaucoma o
_ Glaucoma Severe R Eye Plgmentary Glaucoma of L Eye Severe o
glaucoma, cataract 7
Hx of Ret|nal Detachment )
_ Irregular Astlgmatlsm inR Eye B
'L Eye affected by Degenerative Myopla W|th Foveosch|5|s _
__Myoplc Degeneration -
~ Nuclear Sclerotic Cataract of Both Eyes v
~ Patients daughter answered and scheduled 1/21
proliferative diabetic retinopathy
Renewal
Renewal
_Renewal Called to confrrm W|th patrent sent over referral signed Jun 2024
___Renovascular Hypertensnon _
~ retina tears
Retmal Hole of L Eye o
Retinal Hole of the Eye
retinapathy



Self Referral '“JECt'O"S A B o . -
Severe Nonprollferatlve Diabetic Retinopathy of Both Eyes without Macular Edema associated

with Type 2 Diabetes.

Severe Nonproliferative Diabetic Retinopathy of L Eye with Macular Edema
Stable Proliferative Dlabetlc Retinopathy of Both Eyes

Transfer from FEI to NVEC, FEI will not see patient due tonon payment
Type 2 Diabetes.

Visual Changes

Visual Disturbance

Visual Disturbances

visual impairment

Yag Laser



2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026
7-17-25 10AM
TE NTATIVE BU DG E-{ FY25’26 2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026
Approved Budget Approved Budget TN

Line NSua
1 Cash Balance {Invested Reserves + Remaining Cash) Brought Forward 9,477,780 10,789,932 8.000.000
2
3 Capital Expenditure of District Properties 3,650,000 4,000,000 -
4 Contingency Rescrve 1,500,000 - -
5 TCCH Capital Payment Year 2 of 4 B 250,000
6 10th Street Property Capital - 250,000
7 investment Funds 1,528,000 2,550,000 -
B Reserve Fund 1,290,979 3,000,000 -
9 Total Reserves 7,968,979 9,550,000 6,000,000
10 MNet Cash Balance Brought Forward 1,108,801 1,239,932 1,500,000
11
12
13
14 Ad Valorem Tax 13,573,305 22,445,137 24,372,463
15 Interest income from Checking and Savings Accounts 1,500 1,500 1,500
16 Investment Income from Treasuries and Florida Fixed Income Trust 285,000 127,500 400,000
17 Grant Income - - -
18 Rentincome 10th Street Property - - -
19 Uther income - 2023/2024 Sale of land to VNATC 3,500,000 - -
20 (A} Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 17,359,805 22,574,137 24,773,963
21
22
23
24
25
26
27 Hp naven 13,00y 2,241 71,149
28 -
29 i e a e 78,047 78,047 44,131
30 Total Catholic Charities of Palm Beach County 78,047 78,047 44,131
31
3z Levetopmental screenings - -
33 Early Intervention . .
34 Visiwon and Hearing Scraenings - -
35 Early Childhood Wellness and Early Intervention Progiam 279,878 316,800 -
38 Totat Childcare Resources 279,878 316,800 172,405
37
a5 L T L s L g ausi T rugT 3 268,187 372,854

Page 1 of 7












2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026
7-17-25 10AM
TENTATIVE BUDGET FY25/26
Approved Budget Approved Budget

Line
156 Total WFH 641,864 1,277,540 1,703,003
157
158 wiuging uic Gap HWOINED 5 ACdWLICAIE - 260,000
159 Totorrmem oot 2o~ er ot Indian River County - 260,000 420,U0U
160
161  coauung miregsuucwire 200,000
162  Provider Recruitment and Retention 200,000
164 Total Strategic Investments in Healthcare Access and Infrastructure 400,000
165
166 150,000
167 +=ewns -.o..8Y Care Acess Expansion Program 150,000
168
189 Historical University of Florida Psychiatry and Mental Health - Patient Care 80,000 - -
170 Histarical Crossover Mission - Healthy Kids Program 10,000 - -
171 Historical Mental Health Court - Tatal Program Cost 658,086 711,045 -
172 Historical GlobeChek - Screenings - -
173  Historical Rite Life - Peer Recovery Support 108,000 - -
174 Histarical Senior Gollaborative - UPSLIDE Program 30,000 - -
175 Historical SunCoast Mental Health Center - Wellnass Without Walls - 161,800 -
176 Community Support 392,683 150,000 150,000
177  Countv Share of Medicaid Paid by District 491,774 584,200 648,276
178 458,983 441,563 500,600
179 92,969 160,905 200,000
180 Total Other 2,322,495 2,219,612 1,498,276
181
182 {B) Total Program Expenses 16.285.802 18.945.327 20.779.292
18
18
18 R PP v PERtYS
186 Commussions Paid to Tax Collector 263,322 435,436 472,826
187  Uncoliectible Taxes 407,195 673,354 731,174
168 (C) Total Commissions and Uncoliectibles 885,245 1,294,475 1,503,877
1a¢
184
18 e e s e “4u,uuu Ju,uuU Su,uuu
192  GHC/Other Maintenance 30,000 30,000 15,000
193  10th Street/Other Maintenance - - 75,000
194  licensas and Taxes - Historical 200 3,000 -

Page 5af 7



Line
195
196
197
158
159
200
201
202
203
204
205
208
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224

225
226
227
228
229

2023/2024 2024/2025 2025/2026
7-17-2510AM
TENTATIVE BUDGET FY25/26 PO
Approved Budget Approved Budget
Licenses and Taxes - Human Services Building - - -
Licenses and Taxes -10th Strect - 4,650
Salaries/Benetits 525,000 595,000 725,000
Professional Services - Consulting and Data and Grant Writing 100,006 50,000 70,000
Professional Services - Finance 20,000 47,000 25,000
Legai Services - In House 150,000 175,000 175,000
Legal Services - Qutside - - 20,000
Auditing Servicas 75,000 55,000 €0,000
Office Supplies & Service Contracts 70,000 80,000 80,000
Dues/Subscription/Education 6,000 20,000 20,000
Travel and Expense Reimbursement 3,000 16,000 10,000
Insurance 90,000 110,000 136,000
Bank Fees 500 1,000 -
Investment Mgt/Adv Fees-Deep Blue 15,000 15,000 15,000
Publications and Other 3,000 3,000 3,000
Purchased Services - Rent of District Office 47,000 50,000 50,000
Depreciation (Gifford Equipment) 16,028 15,000 1,502
Depreciation {Gifford Building) 79,068 85,000 66,750
Depreciation {Gifford Building Improvements) - - 23,813
Depreciation {10th Street Buildings) - - 26,558
Depreciation {10th Street |mpsovements) - - 3,467
Depreciation (HSB Building) 19,715 25,000 -
Depreciation {HSBE Building improvements) 18,715
Depreciation (HSB Equiprment) - - 2,529
Depreciation (Land Improvements) - - 1,548
Depreciation {Leasehold Improvements) - 4,167
Depreciation (District Office Equipment) - - 2,115
{D} Total Adminictrativa Evnancas 1,289,511 1,459,000 1,664 815
{E) GRANL 1U AL EXPENSES 18,460,558 21,698,802 23,947,984
Revenue over {under) Expenses {1,100,753) 875,335 825,979
Excess (Deficit} 8,048 2,115,267 2,325,979
Remaining Balance INCLUDING Reserves 7,977,027 11,665,267 8,325,979

230
231
232

Non-Cash ltems

Page 6 of 7



7-17-25 10AM

TENTATIVE BUDGET FY25/26

Line
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
248
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258

Depreciatian
Reserves, Current Year
Excess {Deficit) Carry Forward

Increase (Necraase) nver Prior Year Rudoet - 6

s S e GGt MLt § LA 1T

Current Proposed Rate as a % of Rolled-Back Rate

Rolled-Back Rate

Gross Taxable Vatue

Less Current Year Net New Taxabie Value
Current Year Adjusted Value

Prior Year Final Gross Taxable Value

Prior Millage Levy

Prior Year Ad Valorem Proceeds

Current Year Rolled-Back Rate

Current Year Proposed Operating Millage

Total Prior Year Proceeds

Current Year Aggregate Rolied-Back Rate
Current Year Aggregate Rolled-Back Taxes

Total Ali Non-Voted Ad Valorem Taxes Proposed
Current Year Proposed Aggregate Millage Rate
Current Proposed Rate as a % of Rolled-Back Rate

2023/2024

202372024
Approved Budget

114,811
7,968,379

8,083,790

3,470 aos

u.oLIu

10.73%

26,561,149,800

29,800,454, /ob
23,346,854,870
05110
11,930,243
0.4515
0.5110
11,830,243
0.4615
12,257,971
13,672,748
0.5110
10.73%

2024/2025

202472025
Approved Budget

125,000
5,550,000
9,675,000
3,238.244

U, /oDy
61.35%

(XS

[N

2025/2026

HILIINDR

JEVRTEY

6,000,000

6,152,165

2.745 182

u. /ool
6.71%

Page 7 of 7



To the Trustees of the Indian River County Hospital District:

As we enter the last quarter of the 2024-2025 grant cycle, Sunshine Physical Therapy Clinic is
faced with only $13,000 remaining under the approved grant. To date, our monthly invoices to
the District have averaged approximately $50,000.

A few reasons:

- the number of patient visits we have provided has exceeded our projections by 25%, driven in
part to our increase in therapy staff and specialty services;

- our stringent cancellation policy is being enforced and we are seeing a ¢~~rease in last-minute
cancellations and no-shows;

- we have not experienced the drop in patient visits post-season that we have in years past;

- our marketing and community outreach efforts are working.

While this is all exciting news, it does lead to additional need.

As the only therapy clinic serving a majority of Medicaid patients, and the only non-profit
outpatient therapy clinic on the Treasure Coast, we are growing to meet the demand for both
therapy staff and services. Even with the increase in patient visits, we are still managing waiting
lists, confirming the fact that the need in our community continues. I don’t see this trend
changing.

I am writing to ask the Trustees to consider an additional grant of $150,000 to cover our loss for

the additional projected 2,508 patient visits for those on Medicaid or uninsured in July-
September.

Thank you in advance for your consideration,

Cinny Blassem

Ginny Blossom, CFRE
Execr*ve Director

“The Provider that accepts a large number of Medicaid patients and makes it work is like
the fabled unicorn: there are rumors that they exist, but no one has actually seen them.”

Thanks to you, Sunshine is the unicorn.

1705 17" Avenue P. 772.562.6877
Vero Beach, FL 32960 www.sunshinepic.org






